Executive Compensation and Corporate acquisitions in China

Mei Xue

A Thesis

In

The John Molson School of Business

Presented in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements

for the Degree of Master of Science in Administration (Finance) at

Concordia University

Montreal, Quebec, Canada

August, 2013

© Mei Xue, 2013

CONCORDIA UNIVERSITY School of Graduate Studies

This is to certify that the thesis prepared

By:	Mei Xue		
Entitled:	Executive Compensation and Corporate acquisitions in China		
and submitted	in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the	degree of	
	MSc Finance		
_	the regulations of the University and meets the inality and quality.	accepted standards with	
Signed by the	final examining committee:		
	Dr. Isabelle Dostaler	Chair	
	Dr. Nilanjan Basu	Examiner	
	Dr. Rahul Ravi	Examiner	
	Dr. Harjeet S. Bhabra	Supervisor	
Approved by	Chair of Department or Graduate Program Director		
	Dean of Faculty		
Date	August 10, 2013		

ABSTRACT

Executive Compensation and Corporate acquisitions in China

Mei Xue

This paper examines 259 completed merger and acquisition (M&A) deals undertaken by Chinese firms listed on either the Shanghai or Shenzhen Stock Exchanges between 2005 and 2010. Using comprehensive financial and accounting data, augmented by unique data on executive compensation, we attempt to investigate how executive compensation relates to corporate acquisition decisions in acquiring firms in China. We find that the acquiring firms gain significantly positive abnormal returns around the announcement of M&As. We also find that the stock price of acquiring firms following acquisition announcements statistically outperforms the average market return over a three year period. The salary in cash of the top-three executives differs greatly across the acquiring firms. The overall level of managerial ownership in the acquiring firms is low. There are some observable patterns in the relations between the short-term cumulative abnormal returns (CARs) of the acquiring firms and the executive salary and/or ownership. While the level of executive ownership has no statistically significant influence on the CARs, executive salary is significantly negatively related to the CARs of the acquiring firms, particularly those in the higher salary sample.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF TABLESi	iii
1. INTRODUCTION	1
2. LITERATURE REVIEW.	.5
2.1. Theories of Mergers and Acquisitions	5
2.2 Empirical Studies: Evidence on Post-acquisition Performance	.6
2.3 Executive Compensation and M&A Decisions	.9
2.4 Research on Chinese M&A Market	.11
3. Data	.12
4. Methodology	.14
4.1. Post-acquisition Performance of Acquiring Firms	.14
4.1.1. Announcement effects	.14
4.1.2. Long-term stock price effects	.16
4.1.3 Long-term Accounting Performance	.17
4.2 Executive Compensation in Acquirer firms	.18
4.2.1. Measures of Executive Compensation	.18
4.2.2. Factors influencing Executive Compensation	.18
4.3. Executive compensation and Acquisition Abnormal Returns	.20
4.3.1. Firm characteristics and acquisition announcement CARs	.20
4.3.2. Deal characteristics and acquisition announcement CARs	.21

5.	Empirical results.	.24
	5.1. Abnormal stock price performance around M&A announcements	.25
	5.2. Long-term post-acquisition stock price performance of acquiring firms	.27
	5.3. Long-term post-acquisition accounting performance of acquiring firms	.28
	5.4. Cross-sectional Regression Analysis of CARs	.30
6.	Conclusion	.36
R	EFERENCES	39

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: Distribution and Descriptive Statistics of Merges and Acquisitions	
Table 2: Compensation Characteristics of Top Executives in Acquiring Firms	47
Table 3: Average cumulative abnormal returns (CARs) of acquiring firms	
Table 4: Three-year BHAR of acquiring firms after M&As	
Table 5: pre- and post-acquisition accounting performance of acquiring firms and the difference tests	
Table 6: Cross-sectional regression analysis of the CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1) for acquiring firms	
Table 7: Cross-sectional regression analysis of the CARs for SOE/Non-SOE groups	
Figure 1: Cumulative average abnormal returns (CAARs)	72.

Executive Compensation and Corporate Acquisitions in China

1. Introduction

Mergers and acquisitions (M&As) have been playing an important role in the creation of shareholder wealth. As significant and long-term investments a company makes, M&A activities provide a unique insight into how managers make investment decisions strategically to create firm value. Meanwhile, M&A activities have the potential to exacerbate the agency conflicts between managers and shareholders. M&As are thus hotly debated research topics in studies of relation between managers' personal incentives and their investment decisions.

For a long time M&A activity remained primarily limited to developed markets such as the United States and the United Kingdom; however, they are now taking place in countries all over the world including several emerging markets. In the U.S., M&As continue to take place over time either on a small scale or periodically on great magnitude. Six waves of M&As have been identified, with the first one in the early 1900s and the latest ending in 2008. Understandably, major M&A theories and empirical studies are largely based on M&A activities in developed markets. In recent years, however, the number of M&A activities has risen dramatically in developing countries such as China, India, Russia and South Africa. Not only as investment targets of developed markets, these emerging economies continue to experience large and intensely aggressive M&As domestically and abroad as bidders. Meanwhile, M&As of emerging markets have been the subject of intense research interest, allowing the classical theories

of M&As to be re-analyzed and tested in quite different contexts. In our paper, we study how managerial decisions on M&As are affected by managerial compensation structure and ownership and the consequent impact on shareholder wealth in Chinese market.

The Chinese M&A market has emerged in the last two decades and China has been experiencing a spate of M&A activity especially since 2005. The deregulation of the financial services sector and the development of new financial markets, particularly the restructuring of state-owned enterprises (SOEs) accelerated the growth of Chinese M&A market in the last ten years. Compared with its counterparts in developed countries, China has quite different and unique economic environment. SOEs have been the dominant form of Chinese enterprise for a long time. During the past two decades, SOEs were transformed significantly along with transition of Chinese economy from a planned to a market-oriented one. One result of this transformation has been the progressive increase in the listing of SOEs on the stock exchanges. By the end of 2007, more than 75% of the listed firms on the two thriving stock exchanges in China, Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges, were SOEs. In recent years, more and more Chinese SOEs have gone public and transformed into modern shareholding firms through M&As. The large-scale involvement of SOEs in M&As has in a way created an M&A explosion in China. During the financial crisis that hit the world in 2008, the volume of global M&A transactions dropped by approximately 30% to US\$2.89 trillion. However, the volume of Chinese M&A transactions set a record high of US\$167 billion, with about US\$49 billion that involved SOEs. According to National Statistics, the Chinese economy was the most prominent among high-growth international economic entities in 2008 due to the involvement in the M&A market.

Since the economic environment in China differs greatly from developed countries, the motives, characteristics and wealth effects of M&As in the Chinese market would be different from those in developed markets. A better understanding of M&A activities in China is necessary for the fast growing financial market. We focus our study on the efficiency of managerial M&A decisions in Chinese contexts. Although managers as agents for shareholders are perceived to make decisions in line with shareholder wealth maximization, managers could make decisions which diverge from the interest of shareholders to maximize managers' own utility. Executive compensation could be designed to give incentives for managers to pursue the interests of shareholders. Previous studies on pay-performance link suggest that incentive compensation helps in aligning the interests of managers with those of shareholders. Managers tend to make decisions effectively and improve firm performance with compensation packages of high payperformance sensitivity. While most academic work on executive compensation has been concentrated on a few developed countries, there is an increasing need to study how firms in developing countries, especially with transition economies, compensate their executives to provide efficient managerial incentives.

Executive compensation mechanism in Chinese firms has evolved in the past two decades. The "yearly salary system" since 1992 allows wage budget to be linked to firms' economic performance, introducing profit-oriented incentives to employees. Executives' compensation in the "yearly salary system" consists of two parts: a fixed component (base salary) that is paid monthly and depends on both the average wage for ordinary employees and firm size; and, a variable component (risk salary) that is paid at the end of a year and linked to firm performance in the year. The "yearly salary system", which is

like a typical cash compensation package in Western firms, is considered as a key incentive mechanism for top management in Chinese firms. Moreover, Chinese listed firms were allowed to adopt stock option incentives in September 2006. Equity-based compensation began to serve as long-term incentives for managers in Chinese listed firms. By 2010, approximately 250 of 1725 listed Chinese firms offered stock option incentives. Although stock option incentives are not widespread in China, stock options are a common form of incentive and an important part of executive compensation in high-tech companies. In general, cash compensation appears to be the most dominant form of executive compensation while equity-based compensation may weight differently in Chinese listed firms. The unique ownership structure and compensation system have important effects on pay-performance link in Chinese firms.

In our paper, we explore how executive compensation is related to managerial M&A decisions and post-acquisition performance in Chinese acquiring firms on the premise that incentive compensation could align the interests of managers with those of shareholders. Moreover, we examine how such a relation is influenced by various characteristics of firms and M&A transactions. We limit our study to acquiring firms listed on the Shenzhen and Shanghai Stock Exchanges for the period from 2005 to 2010. We classify the acquiring firms into subgroups by their size, industry and ownership structure; we also classify the M&A transactions by method of payment and industry relatedness. We then examine the short-term and long-term stock performance of the acquiring firms around and after M&As. We undertake cross-sectional analysis to investigate the link between post-acquisition performance and executive compensation in the acquiring firms.

This paper is organized as follows. The following section reviews the related literature. Section 3 describes the methodology and dataset. Section 4 provides the empirical results and Section 5 concludes.

2. Literature review

2.1. Theories of Mergers and Acquisitions

There is a wealth of literature on the relevance of M&A activities. A sizeable stream of research investigates the possible motives for firms to engage in M&A activities. The theories dealing with value-maximization motivation suggest that M&A strategy, like any other investment decisions, should be in line with shareholder wealth maximization. Acquiring firms would engage in M&A activity when the added value by an acquisition exceeds the cost of the acquisition. Likewise, target firms would engage in M&A activities with the expectation of gains to shareholders. Positive gains to both acquiring firms and target firms arise from synergy. The total market values of the two firms after M&As is larger than that prior to M&As. Chatterjee (1986) summarizes the possible sources for the value creation and identifies three kinds of synergy values: operational synergy, financial synergy and collusive synergy.

However, plenty of theories and evidence suggests that M&A strategy usually lead to non-value-maximizing investment decisions. According to Roll (1986), managerial hubris could lead to over optimism in evaluating M&A opportunities and thus non-value-maximizing M&A decisions. With excessive self-confidence, managers of acquiring firms would offer higher valuation of the target than the true valuation of the

target. As a result, the net gains of the combined firms are zero since the positive gains to target firms are offset by the negative gains to acquiring firms. Roll (1986) suggests that the hubris hypothesis provides an explanation for the occurrence of non-positive gain M&As documented by a number of empirical studies.

Like other agency problems, due to the separation of ownership and control, managers may pursue their self-interest at the expense of shareholders' welfare in M&A cases. Managerial self-interest can lead to the outcomes of M&A transactions that maximize managers' utility instead of shareholders' value. As Jensen (1986,1988) indicates, managers of firms with large free cash flows may invest the free cash in unprofitable projects such as acquisitions with no benefits rather than pay out dividends to shareholders. On the other hand, Weston, Siu, and Johnson (2001) suggest that risk averse managers are likely to undertake M&As to reduce employment and earnings risk even if the M&A transaction harms shareholders. Understandably, managerial motives would be important determinant for the outcomes of M&A transactions (Zalewski, 2001).

2.2 Empirical Studies: Evidence on Post-acquisition Performance

M&A activities typically cause significant stock price changes when they are announced. A number of empirical studies on the financial effects of M&As have focused on stock returns of acquiring firms and target firms around the announcements of M&A transactions. While most empirical evidence suggests that target firms experience positive abnormal returns around the announcements, the returns to acquiring firms are more complex. Bradley et al. (1988) find significant positive abnormal returns of 0.97%

to acquiring firms using a U.S. sample of 161 tender offers between 1963-1984. Asquith (1983) split a sample 169 tender offers into successful and unsuccessful acquirers and find that successful acquirers earn significant positive abnormal returns of 3.48% and unsuccessful acquirers have insignificant positive abnormal returns of 0.7%, respectively. Moeller et al. (2004) examine a much larger sample of 12,023 acquisitions from 1980 to 2001 and report an equally-weighted abnormal announcement return of 1.1%. They also find that the abnormal announcement return of large acquiring firms is roughly 2% higher than that of small acquiring firms, suggesting a size effect in acquisition announcement returns. Masulis et al. (2007) examine a sample of 3,333 completed acquisitions between 1990 and 2003 and find that the mean CAR over a five-day event window (-2, +2) is 0.215%, significantly different from zero at the 5% level. However, the mean CAR is negative for transactions financed with stock although the mean CAR for transactions financed exclusively with cash is significantly positive, about 0.798%.

On the contrary, there are several studies that report zero or negative abnormal returns for acquiring firms. For example, Jensen and Ruback (1983) find evidence of zero abnormal returns to acquirers, on average. More recently, Bruner (2002) supported this finding using a sample of 130 acquisitions in the 1971-2001 period, showing that abnormal announcement returns of acquiring firms is around zero. Using a sample of 399 U.S. takeovers from 1975 to 1984, Franks et al. (1991) find an insignificant negative return of -1.02% for acquiring firms. Similarly, Mulherin and Boone (2000) examine 138 U.S. acquiring firms in a period from 1990 to 1999 and report negative returns of -0.37%. Kuiper et al. (2002) examine 181 U.S. acquiring firms for a period from 1981 to 1991 and report negative returns of -0.92%.

Several studies also examine the long-term post-acquisition stock returns of acquiring firms, with mixed findings. For example, Haugen and Udell (1972) report positive abnormal returns over a four-year period after acquisitions when examining US mergers consummated in the period 1961 to 1967. Moreover, they find that acquiring firms earn higher returns when the targets are in unrelated industries. Eckbo (1986) also finds positive one-year cumulative average abnormal returns (CAARs) and suggest that firms acquiring diversifying targets outperform those acquiring industry-related targets. However, Agrawal et al. (1992) examine 765 mergers between NYSE acquirers and NYSE/AMEX targets over the period 1955 to 1987 and report significant negative fiveyear CAARs of about -10%, controlling for firm size and beta. Using 947 U.S. acquisitions during a period from 1970 to 1989, Loughran and Vijh (1997) find a statistically significant loss of -15.9% over a five-year period after acquisitions, controlling for firm size and book to market ratio. Meanwhile, they find that acquirers with M&A deals financed exclusively by cash earn significant positive excess returns of 61.7%, while those with M&As deals financed by stock earn significant negative excess returns of -25%. In the UK cases, Gregory and McCorriston (2005) report a significant abnormal return of -9.36% and -27% for acquiring firms in three years and five years after the announcements. Alexandridis et al. (2006) examine 179 UK takeovers between 1993 and 1998 using both the three-factor Fama and French model and the traditional capital asset pricing model (CAPM) and find a three year abnormal return of about -1%.

Evidence on the accounting performance after M&As tend to be inconclusive since it is hard to choose proper performance measures or proper benchmarks to compare.

Meeks (1977) examines the post-acquisition accounting performance of 233 UK

acquirers in 1964-1972 and finds that profitability of acquiring firms increases in the year of M&As but decreases in the following five years. Using 2941 UK acquisitions in 1948-1977, Dickerson et al. (1997) find that acquiring firms' earnings are significantly lower than their earnings prior to the acquisitions and as well lower than the earnings of non-acquirers. Healy et al. (1992) examine the post-acquisition operating performance of the largest 50 U.S. mergers in the 1979-1984 periods and suggest that acquiring firms have higher operating cash flows after mergers than industry benchmarks. Similarly, Andrade et al. (2001) examine about 2000 U.S. mergers between 1973-1998 and find that the operating margins of acquiring firms improve relative to their industry peers. On the hand, Lu (2004) shows significant negative industry-adjusted returns on assets and returns on equity in acquiring firms during several intervals in the six months after the acquisitions by examining 592 U.S. M&A deals between 1978 and 1996.

2.3 Executive Compensation and M&A Decisions

Literature has paid much attention to how managerial compensation and ownership can align actions of managers with the interests of shareholders since Jensen and Meckling (1976). As Morck et al. (1988) suggest, firms would increase firm value by increasing equity-based executive compensation which reduces managers' non-value-maximizing behavior. Jensen and Murphy (1990) indicate that CEOs are given incentive compensation mainly through flow compensation (annual salary, bonus, new equity grants, and other compensation), changes in the value of stock and options held by CEOs and the possibility of a decrease in the market's assessment of the CEO's human capital.

Hall and Liebman (1998) find that "CEO compensation is highly responsive to firm performance" when considering changes in the value of stock and options held by CEOs. The widely cited research concerning executive compensation in China by Li (2001) examines the pay-performance link in Chinese listed firms and finds that there is no significant relation between executive compensation and firm performance, but there is significant relation between executive compensation and firm size, industry sector and firm location. He suggests that the low level of executive stock and option holdings leads to the insensitive pay-performance link in Chinese firms. However, Kato and Long (2005) provide evidence on "statistically significant sensitivities and elasticities of annual cash compensation (salary and bonus) for top executives with respect to shareholder value in China by examining Chinese listed firms in 1998-2002. Moreover, they find that state ownership of Chinese listed firms weakens the pay-performance link.

Restricting the analysis to managerial M&A decisions, few studies of M&As activities examine the relationship between executive compensation (salary, bonus and equity) and post-acquisition performance. Previous studies, for example, Lewellen & Rosenfeld (1985) link management ownership in the firm to managerial M&As decisions and find that abnormal stock returns from M&As is positively related to the percentage of management ownership of the acquiring firms. In a pioneering paper, Datta, Iskandar and Raman (2001) examine managers' equity-based compensation (EBC) and stock price performance around and during a three-year period after the acquisition announcements using 1,719 US acquisitions in 1993-1998. They report a strong positive relationship between EBC and post-acquisition stock performance, controlling acquisition mode, means of payment, managerial ownership, and previous option grants. On the other hand,

Firth (1991) examines the relationship between executive rewards and M&A deals and find executives rewards increase as shareholder value increases after M&As. Bliss and Rosen (2001) investigate the relationship between CEO compensation in acquiring firms and bank mergers. They find that CEO compensation and wealth increase even if the stock price drops after M&As. Using a sample of 327 US M&A deals in 1993-1999, Grinstein and Hribar (2004) find that CEO compensation has no significant relationship with post-acquisition performance.

2.4 Research on Chinese M&A Market

Studies and practices of M&A activities in Chinese market are still limited, compared with those in developed markets. Boateng et al. (2008) examine 27 Chinese cross-border M&A deals taken by firms listed on the Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges in 2000–2004. They report positive and significant CARs of 1.32% over (0, +1) period for acquiring firms and suggest that cross-border M&As create value for Chinese acquirers in short term. More recently, Chi et al. (2009) examine 1148 M&As on the Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges in 1998-2003 using the market model, the CAPM model and the buy-and-hold method to calculate abnormal returns. They find significant positive abnormal returns in 6 months before and upon the announcements but insignificant abnormal returns in 6 months after the announcements. They conclude that "M&A does not improve the fundamentals of acquiring firms, at least not in the short-run." Moreover, they suggest that higher state ownership has a positive impact on the acquiring firms' performance but pre-acquisition performance of acquiring firms or

industry relatedness between acquirers and target firms is less relevant. Meanwhile, most empirical results show insignificant operating performance after the M&A announcements. By examining sales to asset, return to asset, return to equity and earning per share, Feng and Wu (2001) show that the operating performance of acquiring firms increases one year after the announcements but decreases in the following years. Wang et al. (2001) examine sales' growth, earnings and returns to equity and show similar results. This suggests that the effects of M&As on the operating performance are not material for Chinese acquiring firms. Bhabra and Huang (2003) investigate 437 M&A deals initiated by Chinese listed firms and find significant positive abnormal returns to the acquiring firms in the short term around the M&A announcements.

3. Data

We use Thomson Financial SDC Platinum Merger and Acquisition Database to collect Chinese M&A data between January 2005 and December 2010. We include transactions that are: (1) Chinese domestic bidders listed on Shanghai or Shenzhen Stock Exchanges; (2) M&A deals are identified as a merger or an acquisition of majority interest, or tender offers by SDC; (3) M&A deals are listed as completed with an announcement date and effective date in our sample period; and (4) bidders wholly own the target (100% of the equity) after the completion of M&A transactions. To keep the deals in our sample more homogeneous, we exclude financial institutions due to their differences in capitalization and regulation from others. We also exclude the deals where the bidders are employees, subsidiary or parent company. We only consider bidders

which make an acquisition announcement for a single target on the same date, and thus exclude deals in which bidders make more than one acquisition announcement in one year to reduce any estimation biases resulting from confounding events. Furthermore, we obtain stock price data of acquiring firms and the market return from the website of Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges. We obtain accounting data of acquiring firms as well as compensation data of top executives in acquiring firms from *Annual Reports of Listed Companies in China* and the *Statistics Year Book* issued by the Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges. We exclude bidders which do not have daily price records at least one year before the acquisition announcement; and those which do not have accounting data and compensation data at the fiscal year end before the acquisition announcement. Finally, we have 259 M&A deals in our full sample. For each M&A deal in our sample, we collect information on the announcement date, the effective date, the means of payment and the value of the transaction from the SDC.

Table 1 presents the distribution of the 259 M&As completed during the period from 2005 to 2010 in China. As shown in Panel A, the number of deals consistently increase from 2005 to 2009, with most M&A deals occurring in 2009; 30.12% of the sample. The full sample is divided into subgroups by the methods of payment, the relatedness of acquiring and target firms, the industry sectors of bidders and the ownership structure of bidders, as shown in Panel B. The methods of payment include Cash-only and Non-cash. Cash refers to M&As paid with 100 percent cash. Others include those financed with equity or assets. An acquiring firm is considered as related to its target if it is in the same industry sector with its target. Otherwise, the acquiring firm is unrelated to its target. According to Wind's industry classification, we categorize the full sample into six

industry groups: Financials, Industrials, Information Technology, Mining & Materials, Wholesales & Retails, and others. As shown in Panel B, 182 out of the 259 acquiring firms, about 70% of the sample, financed their M&A transactions entirely with cash. The data also shows that bidders and their targets are related in more than two-third of the M&A deals. In addition, there are more M&A deals in the industry sectors of Wholesales & Retails and Mining & Materials, accounting for nearly half of the sample. We categorize acquiring firms into SOE and Others by the percentage of government ownership. SOE refers to an acquiring firm in which the government ownership is more than 50 percent of equity. We observe that SOEs only account for about 15% of the full sample and several subsamples. Panel C presents descriptive statistics of deal-specific and firm-specific characteristics. Firm size is measured by acquirers' assets; leverage is measured by the ratio of debt to equity; average profitability is measured by the mean of acquirers' ROA, ROE and profit margin during the three years prior to the M&A announcements. We find that the average transaction value of SOEs is twice as high as that of Non-SOEs. Moreover, SOEs have much greater firm size, almost four times greater than Non-SOEs. Meanwhile, SOEs have higher average profitability and lower leverage ratio than Non-SOEs.

4. Methodology

4.1. Post-acquisition Performance of Acquiring Firms

4.1.1. Announcement Effects

Our paper uses standard event study methodology (Brown & Warner, 1980) to

empirically examine the stock price impact of acquisition announcements. The event study measures the impact of M&As on the value of the firm, by using the abnormal stock return which is the difference between the actual return and the expected return, around the time of an event. The approach is based on the assumption that only the random announcement events affect the abnormal returns occurring on that day. Thus, abnormal stock returns provide a unique method to measure the impact of an announcement on firms' future expected profitability (McWilliams and Siegel, 1997).

We estimate the announcement period returns of acquiring firms based on the market model. The abnormal stock return on day t is calculated by subtracting the return predicted by general market trends on the stock from its actual return on that day, as in the following formula:

$$AR_{it} = R_{it} - (\alpha_i + \beta_i R_{mt}) \tag{1}$$

Where,

 AR_{it} = abnormal return for firm i on day t,

 R_{it} = realized return for firm i on day t,

 β_i = market model parameter estimates of firm i, and

 R_{mt} = daily value-weighted market return on day t.

The date of the event is the announcement date of an acquisition, which is denoted as t = 0. Following Schwert (1996), we estimate the market parameters for each acquirer firm over a 253 trading day period from day -380 to day -127 (i.e.,

approximately one year). Then, we calculate the daily abnormal returns of acquiring firms over the period from day -42 to day 126. The abnormal returns are averaged across all firms on each event day to estimate an average abnormal return (AAR) over the period.

Based on the assumptions that the each day returns are independent and the standard errors are cumulative, accumulating the abnormal returns over a given window $[t_1, t_2]$ provides the cumulative abnormal return (CAR) for each firm:

$$CAR_{i\tau} = \sum AR_{it} \tag{2}$$

We calculate CARs of acquirer firms over various time windows during a period of 42 days before and 126 days after the announcement of an acquisition. The null hypothesis is that the mean abnormal stock return during the event windows is equal to zero. The statistical significance of CARs is estimated by using the Patell t-statistic (Patell (1976)), assuming cross-sectional independence and time-series independence. Since t-tests are based on strong assumptions about the underlying return distribution, we also perform a nonparametric test, the generalized sign test to ensure the robustness.

4.1.2. Long-term Stock Price Effects

We measure long-term abnormal stock returns of acquiring firms after M&A using the BHAR approach (Barber & Lyon, 1997). BHAR for each acquirer firm is measured as the difference in returns on a sample firm and its benchmark through a buy-

and-hold investment strategy across t days, as the following:

$$BHAR_{i\tau} = \prod_{t=1}^{\tau} [1 + R_{it}] - \prod_{t=1}^{\tau} [1 + E(R_{mt})]$$
 (3)

Where day t = 1 is the first trading day following the effective date, R_{it} is the return on stock i on day t, $E(R_{it})$ is the expected return in day t. Here, we use the market index, R_{mt} , as the expected return for each acquirer firm.

The BHAR approach adequately measures the returns obtained by an investment strategy. It interprets whether sample firms earn abnormal returns over a particular horizon of analysis. Since distribution of BHRs around firm-specific events is skewed over long horizons, we use the bootstrap method to conduct significance tests.

4.1.3. Long-term Accounting Performance

We also examine accounting performance of acquiring firms during a three year period after M&A announcements to further investigate the long-term effects. Moreover, executive bonuses are typically tied to performance measures based on accounting information such as ROE or ROA. Executives usually need to meet objectives of some accounting returns established by the board, and the accounting returns have impact on executive salary and bonus than stock returns (Lambert and Larcker, 1987, 1992). In our study, we examine three financial ratios, *ROA*, *ROE* and *Profit Margin* of acquiring firms from three years before and three years after the year of M&A announcements. The accounting measures deal with the efficiency of management, and thus provide some insights into the prudence of managerial M&A decisions. To examine the changes in

post-acquisition accounting performance, we estimate the "normal performance" as the monthly average *ROA*, *ROE* and *Profit Margin* from four years to one year before the announcement year. The abnormal post-acquisition performance is calculated as the difference between the actual performance and the estimated normal performance.

4.2 Executive Compensation in Acquiring Firms

4.2.1. Measures of Executive Compensation

We measure executive compensation of acquiring firms by considering both annual cash compensation and equity-based compensation granted to top three executives. All compensation data are recorded at the end of year before the acquisition announcement. All value variables of compensation are adjusted for inflation using CPI (FY2003=100) and are thus expressed in 2003-constant RMBs.

4.2.2. Factors Influencing Executive Compensation

Executive pay levels are determined by a number of factors, such as executive skill and effort, firm size and competing firms' proposed salaries and firm performance. Based on our hypothesis, executive compensation can effectively align managerial interests with shareholders' interests and have positive influence on corporate takeover decisions. When we examine the influence of executive compensation on acquisition performance, we control for a variety of factors that could influence executive pay levels to ensure that our results are not biased

Firm size controls for differences in executive pay levels between small and large

firms. Large firms may offer a higher level of base salary to executives since large firms usually have more complex management needs, suggesting a positive relationship between firm size and executive pay. *Industry classification* of a firm may also affect executive pay levels. Executive pay in the same industry sector tends to be at the similar level, but there are usually industry wage differentials in executive compensation probably due to different ability of pay and human capital in different industry sections.

In addition, a firm's ownership structure exerts important effects on performancecontingent executive compensation. Especially, ownership structure is less endogenous in the Chinese context and the introduction of different ownership structure is often motivated by political considerations. As mentioned above, state ownership is dominant in Chinese listed firms. Listed firms with large percentage of government shares have less exposure to the market and thus less market discipline on executives. Comparably, privatized listed firms tend to have more effective incentive mechanism. According to a survey conducted by Kato and Long (2005), fully privatized firms tend to focus on profit and stock performance while SOEs often include factors such as occupational safety and health records when they implement the "yearly salary system." Nevertheless, state ownership imply several positive effects on corporate governance. SOEs in China are usually superior to private firms in the level of management and the quality of employee, and they sometimes signal to the market higher certainty of shareholders' wealth. Although state ownership influence is inconclusive, the link between executive compensation and performance varies across firms with different ownership structure. Therefore, we take the proportion of state ownership into consideration in examining the effects of executive compensation on acquisition performance.

4.3. Executive Compensation and Acquisition Abnormal Returns

Based on the premise that incentive compensation aligns the interests of managers with those of shareholders, we examine whether there is a systematic relation between executive compensation and abnormal stock returns around and after M&As. We use an Ordinary Least Square (OLS) regression model to analyze the relation between the CARs and executive compensation, controlling for a variety of variables that characterize the acquiring firms and the deals.

4.3.1. Firm Characteristics and Acquisition Announcement CARs

We first consider the effects of firm characteristics including *firm size*, *industry* classification and ownership structure on CARs around M&As. As Bajaj and Vijh (1995) indicate, the market reaction to corporate announcements is larger for small firms than for large firms due to less information produced for stocks of small firms before the announcements. Specifically, we measure firm size using the natural logarithm of the market capitalization one month prior to the announcement. Following Datta, Iskandar-Datta, and Raman (2001), we also include industry dummies based on two-digit SIC codes to account for possible industry effects. As we mentioned above, Chinese listed firms have the ownership structure quite different from their counterparts in Western countries. SOEs remain dominant and the state ownership play an important role in the listed firms. Moreover, most listed firms have a single dominant shareholder whose ownership far exceeds that of the second largest shareholder. Several studies provide

evidence that the ownership structure affects firm performance in China. For example, Chen et al. (2009) suggest that the operating efficiency of Chinese listed companies varies across the type of controlling shareholder. Central government controlled firms perform the best, while privately controlled firms perform worst. Chi et al. (2009) examine the ownership of listed acquiring firms in China and find that strong state ownership influence on acquiring firms has positive effects on market performance. We use a qualitative dummy variable to indicate the proportion of government ownership of acquiring firms.

4.3.2. Deal Characteristics and Acquisition Announcement CARs

Prior research provides evidence on the impacts of deal-related characteristics on CARs around acquisition announcements. We also include deal-related control variables to capture the difference in M&A transactions. The *method of payment* (Cash, stock and mixed offers) for an acquisition transaction is considered as an indicator of the acquirer's confidence in the value of the deal. Cash offers are perceived positively by the market. In deals financed with cash, acquiring firms are more likely to fairly value the targets. Acquiring firms which believe that their stocks are undervalued tend to fund takeover by cash, debt or abandon the deals. Stock offers may convey negative information that the acquiring firms are overvalued (Myers & Majluf, 1984). However, Eckbo et al. (1990) suggest that mixed offer captures both signal effects and expected synergy gain independent of means of payment and thus offer higher abnormal returns to the acquiring firms than the other two payment methods. Travlos (1987) find that acquiring firms using

cash offers gained an insignificant cumulative abnormal return of 0.24%, whereas acquiring firms using stock offers suffer a significant negative loss of 1.47%. Around the M&As announcements. Brown and Ryngaert (1991) support these finding using a larger sample of 268 firms, reporting a 0.06% abnormal return to cash offers, -2.74 % abnormal return to stock offers and 2.48% abnormal return to mixed offers. Hence, we expect that acquiring firms in deals financed with cash out-performance those with all-equity offers around and after the acquisition announcements.

A number of studies investigate the shareholder wealth effects involved in *cross*border M&A transactions, with mixed findings. Some literature suggests that crossborder M&As enable acquiring firms to obtain valuable and unique resources in the outward market and benefit from the integration of diversification and organizational capacity (Morck & Yeung, 1992; Barney, 1991; Kang, 1993). On the other hand, the complications of cross-border M&A transactions, for example, lack of country and firm specific knowledge of the foreign targets, potentially lead to wrong valuation of the targets, greater acquisitions costs and bid premiums that lead to zero or negative shareholder wealth effects for bidders (Datta & Puia, 1995; Reuer et al., 2004). Currently, cross-border M&As are becoming an important strategic tool for corporate growth in China. Chinese firms are encouraged to seek investment opportunities abroad, and acquiring firms involved in cross-border M&As are provided with prominent capital support and resources. A recent study by Boateng et al. (2008) report significant positive abnormal returns for Chinese acquiring firms involved in cross-border M&As. Therefore, we distinguish between domestic and cross-border M&A transactions to account for the deal-related effects on post-acquisition performance.

Finally, we consider the effects of *relatedness* between acquiring firms and their targets on abnormal return around and after acquisition announcements. M&A transactions in which the acquirer and target firms belong to the same industry are classified as a related or focus-oriented strategy, while others are unrelated or diversification strategies. Empirical evidence on the shareholder wealth effects of relatedness between bidders and targets is inconclusive. Sicherman and Pettway (1992) report that the shareholder wealth of acquiring firms increase in focus-oriented deals by examining 147 US M&A announcements. On the other hand, Morck et al. (1990) examine U.S. deals during the 1975-1987 period and find no significant difference between the abnormal return in focus-oriented deals and abnormal return in diversification deals. Although diversification might benefit acquiring firms by increasing market power and efficiently allocating risk capital in the long term, acquiring firms in diversification deals require more information to value targets in unrelated industry and suffer from inefficient valuation arising from potential information asymmetry. Takeovers in the related industry are assumed to be more efficient and increase average shareholder wealth for acquiring firms (Travlos, 1987; Eckbo and Thorburn, 2009).

5. Empirical Results

In this section, we first present descriptive statistics of executives' compensation of the acquiring firms. Then we examine the short-term stock returns around M&A announcements, the long-term trends in the stock performance and accounting performance of the acquiring firms after M&A announcements. More importantly, we investigate the influence of executive compensation one year before M&A announcements on stock performance and accounting performance of the acquiring firms. Finally, we undertake cross-sectional regressions analysis for executive compensation and for CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1) windows.

Table 2 presents compensation characteristics of top executives in acquiring firms of our sample. Panel A provides information on annual cash income of executives one year prior to the M&A announcements and the executives' ownership at year-end preceding the M&A announcements. Cash income of executives includes annual salary, bonus and other annual compensation paid to executives in cash. The mean cash income is 280.76 thousand Yuan and the median is 174.2 thousand Yuan, with the maximum of 2427.42 thousand Yuan and the minimum of 17.14 thousand Yuan. The level of cash income varies greatly across the acquiring firms in our sample. Moreover, it shows that executives' cash income of SOEs is more than that of Non-SOEs, as expected since SOEs are larger than the Non-SOEs. Managerial ownership refers to the percentage of equity owned by top executives in the acquiring firms. The mean managerial ownership is 4.6% and the median is 0. The results show that the overall level of managerial ownership in the acquiring firms is low, and more than half of the acquiring firms do not offer their executives shares of stock. Obviously, the mean managerial ownership in SOEs, 0.04%,

is much smaller than the mean managerial ownership, 5.41%, in Non-SOEs. Panel B presents some firm-specific characteristics categorized by executive compensation. The acquiring firms are categorized into low/high salary groups as well as low/high managerial ownership groups. A firm is categorized in the low salary/managerial ownership group if executive salary/ownership is at or below the median, otherwise the firm is in the high salary/managerial ownership group. We observe that acquiring firms in the low salary group have smaller size, lower leverage and profitability except for profit margin than those in the high salary group. Acquiring firms in the low ownership group have larger size than those in the high ownership group. The profitability of acquiring firms in the low ownership group is slightly lower than that in the high ownership group.

5.1. Abnormal Stock Price Performance Around M&A Announcements

Figure 1 provides a graphical illustration of the cumulative abnormal returns (CARs) within a period of 168 trading days (about eight months), 42 trading days (about two months) before and 126 trading days (about half a year) after M&A announcements. Overall, there is a positive trend of abnormal returns before and a few days after the announcement date. After then, the abnormal returns become negative. Furthermore, we observe a positive AAR of 1.47% on day 0, significant at the 0.1% level. Moreover, we observe that AARs are significantly positive on day -2 at the 1% confidence level and on day 2 at the 0.1% level. From 3 days prior to M&A announcements to 2 days after, AARs are consistently positive, with a sharp price increase on the announcement day.

Table 3 provides information on the average cumulative abnormal returns (CARs) of

acquiring firms over different event windows during the period (-42, +126). From Panel A, we observe a significant positive CAR of 1.76% over the standard (-1, +1) window. The CARs in longer windows, for example, (-10, -1), (-21, -1), (-42, -1) and (0, 10) also show significant gains at the 0.1% level. Overall, CARs of selected windows during the half year after M&A announcements are all positive, but those in longer windows, (0, 42) and (0, 126) are not statistically significant. CAR over the period (-42, +126) also appears positive, significant at the 5% level.

Our results suggest that a M&A announcement brings positive effects on stock price to acquirers in the Chinese market. A steep increase in acquirers' stock returns on the announcement date suggests significant wealth gains for acquirers from the forthcoming M&A transactions. Meanwhile, acquiring firms have already experienced a significant price run-up of approximately 2.83% during the 42 trading days prior to M&A announcements, suggesting that the M&A activities do not hit the market with a surprise. Especially, we observe a positive AAR of 0.68% on day -23, significant at the 0.1% level. The stock price increase prior to M&A announcements may be partially related to the presence of informed traders or a leakage of information about M&A activities to market participants. In sum, it is clear that shareholders of acquiring firms benefit from positive wealth effects of M&As in the short term.

Moreover, we examine the CARs of acquiring firms over different event windows during the period (-42, +126) for subsamples categorized by executive compensation and ownership. We first partition the full sample into a high/low salary group, and then divide each salary group into a high/low ownership category. We examine the difference in mean and median of the CARs between the high and low salary group in Panel B,

between the high and low ownership group in Panel C and between the high salary-high ownership group and the low salary-low ownership group in Panel D. We observe that in general, the selected CARs of acquiring firms in the low level group are larger than those in the high level group, except for the CARs over (-1, 0). Nevertheless, the difference is not statistically significant. Specifically, we observe that the CARs over (-1, 0) is the lowest, 0.6032%, in the low salary and low ownership group than those in the other groups. However, the CARs over (-1, +1) is the lowest, 1.32%, in the high salary and high ownership group. Furthermore, we find that AARs on the announcement day, day 0, are higher in the high salary group than in the low salary group and as well higher in the high ownership group than in the low ownership group. On the other hand, AARs on day -1 and day +1 follow an opposite pattern: they are higher in the low salary/ownership group than in the high salary/ownership group.

5.2. Long-term Post-acquisition Stock Price Performance of Acquiring Firms

In this section, we examine the stock performance of acquiring firms during three years after M&A announcements. Table 4 presents the three-year post-acquisition buyand-hold returns (BHARs) of acquiring firms, the market index in matched holding period and differences between them. Similarly, we categorize the full sample into subgroups by executive compensation and ownership. We report the results for the full sample, the high/low salary group and the high/low ownership group in Panel A; for the low salary-low ownership group, the low salary-high ownership group, the high salary-low ownership group and the high salary-high ownership group in Panel B. As shown in Panel A, the three-year BHARs of acquiring firms is significantly positive, 41.35%, for

the full sample. The three-year BHARs for the high/low salary group and the high/low ownership group are also positive, significant at 0.01 confidence level. The three-year BHARs of acquiring firms in the low salary group is the highest, 55.20%, twice that of acquiring firms in the high salary group. Moreover, we observe that the three-year BHARs of acquiring firms in the high ownership group is higher than that of acquiring firms in the low ownership group, but the difference is not statistically significant. As shown in Panel B, the three-year BHARs of acquiring firms in the low salary-high ownership group is the highest, 58.69%, while that of acquiring firms in the high salarylow ownership group is the lowest among the four subgroups. While comparing the BHARs of acquiring firms in the low salary-low ownership group with those in the high salary- high ownership group, we do not find any significant difference. Overall, we find that the acquiring firms in our sample noticeably outperform the average stock market over the three years following the M&A announcement. It suggests that shareholders in the Chinese acquiring firms have wealth gains in the long term. Especially, the acquiring firms which offer a low level of salary but a high level equity to their executives tend to perform best in the long term. It implies that SOEs, whose executives usually have more annual cash income but less ownership, do not operate efficiently as non-SOEs.

5.3. Long-term Post-acquisition Accounting Performance of Acquiring Firms

As defined earlier, the estimation of expected accounting performance is captured by the average ROA, ROE and Profit Margin from four years to one year before M&A announcements. Thus, we can examine whether actual ROA, ROE and Profit Margin

after M&A announcements are significantly different from the expected level. Table 5 presents the pre- and post-acquisition accounting performance of acquiring firms and the difference tests between them for the full sample and subsamples. The second and third column of Panel A shows the three-year average accounting performance before and after M&A announcements. The average ROA, ROE and Profit Margin after M&A announcements are all higher than the expected although the difference is only statistically significant for ROA. We report one-year average ROA, ROE and Profit Margin during the consecutive three years after M&A announcements. It shows that ROA and Profit Margin are significantly higher than the expected in one year after M&A announcements. ROE is higher than the expected, significant at 5% level, in the second and the third year after M&A announcements.

Panel B and C presents the difference analysis between the pre- and post-acquisition accounting performance of acquiring firms for subsamples categorized by executive compensation and ownership. We observe that post-acquisition ROA and Profit Margin significantly outperform those before M&As in the low salary group. In the high ownership group, post-acquisition Profit Margin significantly outperforms that before M&As. On the other hand, post-acquisition ROA, ROE and Profit Margin are lower than those before M&As in the high salary group albeit the difference is not statistically significant. There is no significant difference between pre- and post-acquisition ROA, ROE and Profit Margin in the low ownership group. While comparing the abnormal accounting performance between the high and low salary group, we find that the abnormal ROA in the low salary group is significantly higher than that in the high salary

group. There is no significant difference of abnormal accounting performance between the high and low ownership group. As shown in Panel C, we partition the full sample into high/low salary groups and report the comparison of pre- and post-acquisition accounting performance for high/low ownership subsamples in each salary group. We observe that post-acquisition ROA, ROE and Profit Margin outperform those before M&As in the low salary group while the difference is significant except for that of Profit Margin in the high ownership group. On the other hand, in the high salary group, all the differences are not statistically significant while post-acquisition ROA underperform in each ownership group and post-acquisition ROE underperform in the high ownership group. We also compare the abnormal accounting performance of acquiring firms in the low salary-low ownership group with that of acquiring firms in the high salary-high ownership group. We observe that the abnormal ROA and ROE in the low salary-low ownership group are significantly higher than those in the high salary-high ownership group. To sum up, the results show significant better post-acquisition ROA and ROE for the low salary group and significant better post-acquisition Profit Margin for the low ownership group in the low salary group.

5.4. Cross-sectional Regression Analysis of CARs

In this section, we estimate cross-sectional regressions of CARs over (-1, 0) and over (-1, +1), respectively, against executive compensation and a variety of variables that characterize the M&A deals and the acquiring firms. The regression analysis allows us to examine the relation between executive compensation and bidders' stock performance

around M&A announcement, controlling the deal- and firm-specific variables. The following three regression models are estimated:

$$CAR_i=a0+a1*logasset_i+a2*lev_i+a3*paym_i+a4*diff_ind_i+a5*ownship_i+a6*ROA_i+a7*SOE dummy_i+e_i$$
 (4)

$$CAR_{i}=a0+a1*salary_{i}+a2*lev_{i}+a3*paym_{i}+a4*diff_ind_{i}+a5*ownship_{i}+a6*ROA_{i}+a7*SOE_dummy_{i}+e_{i} \tag{5}$$

$$CAR_{i}=a0+a1*salary_{i}/logasset_{i}+a2*lev_{i}+a3*paym_{i}+a4*diff_ind_{i}+a5*ownship_{i}+a6*RO$$

$$A_{i}+a7*SOE_dummy_{i}+e_{i} \qquad (6)$$

Where,

 CAR_i = Cumulative abnormal return of the acquiring firms during the (-1, 0) or (-1, +1) event window,

Logasset_i = Natural logarithm of asset size of the acquiring firms at the year-end preceding M&A announcements,

Lev_i = Debt-to-equtiy ratio of the acquiring firms at the year-end preceding M&A announcement,

ROA_i = Return-to-asset of the acquiring firms at the year-end preceding M&A

announcement,

 $Paym_{mi} = Dummies$ for the methods of payment for M&A transactions (m = 1: Pay in cash only; 0: Others),

Diff_ind_{ni} = Dummies for relatedness in industry sectors of bidders and targets (n = 1: Bidder and target belong to the same industry; 0: Others),

 $SOE_dummy_{ki} = SOE dummies (k = 1: SOE; 0: Others),$

Salary_i = Cash income of the top-three executives in the acquiring firms during the year prior to M&A announcement,

Ownship_i = Ownership of the top-three executives in the acquiring firms at the year-end preceding M&A announcement,

Slogasset_i = Calculated as dividing Salary by Logasset.

With the three models, we do regression analysis of the CARs for 1) the full sample as well as the eight subgroups categorized by executives' salary and ownership. They are 2) the high salary group, 3) the low salary group 4) the high ownership group, 5) the low ownership group, 6) the high salary and high ownership group, 7) the high salary and low ownership group, 8) the low salary and high ownership group, and 9) the low salary and low ownership group. We present the results for regressions of CARs over the (-1, 0) and (-1, 1) in the nine groups through Panel A to Panel I in Table 6 using each of the models.

For Model 1, we regress the CARs on executive ownership, controlling the deal- and firm-specific variables. We observe that executive ownership does not have significant

influence on the CARs over (-1, 0) or (-1, +1) for the full sample and the subsamples. For CARs over (-1, 0), the coefficient of the ownership is negative for all the group except for the high salary and low ownership group, as shown in Panel G. For CARs over (-1, +1), the coefficient of the ownership is negative for all the groups except for the low ownership group (Panel E) and the high salary and low ownership group (Panel G). Specifically, as shown in Panel G, the ownership is positively related to the three day CARs, significant at 0.1 confidence level. The results suggest that for the acquiring firms in which the executive ownership is relatively low, an increase in the proportion of managerial ownership may lead to better stock performance around M&A announcements. For the acquiring firms in which the executive ownership is relatively high, a higher level of managerial ownership may imply worse stock returns around M&A announcements, albeit the negative relationship is not statistically significant. A positive relationship between executive ownership and CARs around M&A announcement is more likely for acquiring firms with a low level of managerial ownership but a high level of salary.

In addition, we observe that there is noticeable relationship between the method of payment and the CARs. The dummy variable, Payment is significantly inversely related to the CARs, indicating the acquiring firms in deals financed with 100 percent cash experience worse stock performance than the acquiring firms in deals financed partially with or without cash around M&A announcements. Contrary to previous research, we find that all-cash deals in M&A lead to a significant loss in stock returns of the acquiring firms in Chinese market. It seems that the cash offers are not positively perceived by the market. On the other hand, as mentioned above, 70% of the acquiring firms in our sample

finance their deals entirely with cash. All-cash deals are more common in Chinese market and convey less valuable information, per se. Another variable, ROA, shows consistently positive relationship with the CARs in all the groups, significant for the full sample and the low salary group, suggesting that better accounting performance in the preceding year indicates higher stock returns around M&A announcements.

For Model 2, we regress the CARs on executive salary and ownership, controlling the deal- and firm-specific variables. Similarly, we observe that executive ownership have no significant influence on the CARs over (-1, 0) or (-1, +1). As for executive salary, we observe a negative relationship between executive salary and the CARs over (-1, +1) in the high salary group (Panel B) and the high salary-low ownership group (Panel G), significant at 0.1 confidence level. In the other groups, there is no significant relationship between executive salary and the CARs over (-1, 0) or (-1, +1). Moreover, in the low salary-low ownership group, the coefficient of executive salary appears positive for the CARs over (-1, +1) (Panel I).

Once again, it is shown that the method of payment is significantly negatively related to the CARs. Meanwhile, it is shown that ROA has a positive effect on the CARs, which is significant for the full sample and the low salary group. The dummy variable, Diff_ind, identifying the relatedness between bidders and targets, is positively related to the CARs of the acquiring firms offering a relatively higher level of executive salary, as shown in Panel B, F and G. In the other groups, the coefficient of Diff_ind is negative.

For model 3, we regress the CARs on executive ownership and the variable, Slogasset, defined as dividing executive salary by Logasset, controlling the deal- and

firm-specific variables. The results suggest that neither executive ownership nor Slogasset has significant effects on the CARs for all the groups. The coefficient of Slogasset is positive except in the low salary-low ownership group (Panel I). The coefficient of executive ownership is positive in the low ownership (Panel E) and the high salary-low ownership group (Panel H), while it is negative in the other groups.

Furthermore, we do regressions of the CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1) for the SOE group and non-SOE group, using the following three regression model:

$$CAR_{i}=a0+a1*logasset_{i}+a2*lev_{i}+a3*paym_{i}+a4*diff_ind_{i}+a5*ownship_{i}+a6*ROA_{i}+e_{i} \eqno(7)$$

$$CAR_i = a0 + a1 * salary_i + a2 * lev_i + a3 * paym_i + a4 * diff_ind_i + a5 * ownship_i + a6 * ROA_i + e_i$$

$$(8)$$

$$CAR_i = a0 + a1 * salary_i / logasset_i + a2 * lev_i + a3 * paym_i + a4 * diff_ind_i + a5 * ownship_i + a6 * RO$$

$$A_i + e_i \quad (9)$$

The models are similar to the previous three models except that we omit the variable, SOE_dummy. The results are presented in Table 7. We observe that the executive ownership has a positive effect on the CARs over (-1, 0) in the SOE group, as shown in Panel A; the executive ownership has an negative effect on the CARs over (-1, 0) in the non-SOE group, as shown in Panel B. As for the CARs over (-1, +1), the executive ownership has a negative effect in both groups execept CARs for SOE calculated by model 3. However, all the relations are not statistically significant. For all the three models, the coefficient of executive salary appears negative in both groups. On the other

hand, when looking at the results from the model 5, we find that executive salary is significantly negatively related to the CARs in the SOE group, as shown in Panel A and C. Similarly, there is significant negative relation between the variable, Slogasset, and the CARs for SOEs. It suggests that higher payoff to executives does not lead to better firm performance in the Chinese government-owned firms.

6. Conclusions

In this paper, we examine the effects of Chinese M&As on the acquiring firms' stock and accounting performance and how the acquiring firms' executive compensation can affect the performance using a sample of 259 completed M&A transactions from 2005 to 2010 in the Chinese market. We observe significant increases in stock returns of the acquiring firms around the M&A announcements. As for the long-term post-acquisition performance of the acquiring firms, we observe significantly positive three-year BHARs with the market index serving as a benchmark. The accounting performance, measured by ROA and ROE, also improves noticeably during a period of three years after the M&A announcements. The executive salary and ownership of the acquiring firms, on the other hand, have no statistically significant influence on the short-term CARs despite some observable patterns in their relation.

Consistent with some previous research on the Chinese M&A market (Boateng et al., 2008; Chi et al., 2009), we find that M&A deals have positive and significant impacts on the short-term acquirers' CARs around their announcements, suggesting short-term wealth gains for the acquirers' shareholders. The CARs are positively related to the

acquirers' ROA one year before the M&As. The CARs are also significantly related to the method of payment for M&A deals. However, in contrast to most Western evidence, the acquiring firms financing their M&A deals wholly with cash do not outperform their counterparts in the Chinese market.

We mainly focus on the executive compensation of the acquiring firms in our sample and its effects on the firms' stock returns around M&A announcements. We observe that the proportion of managerial ownership in the acquiring firms is low, and more than half of the acquiring firms do not offer their executives shares of stock. Meanwhile, the acquiring firms owned by the Chinese government pay a much higher level of salary to their executives and have a lower level of managerial ownership.

Furthermore, we examine the effects of executive compensation on the CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1) in the full sample and the subsample categorized by executive salary and ownership. Overall, the level of executive ownership has no significant influence on the CARs. Executive salary is significantly negatively related to the CARs for the high salary groups and the high salary-low ownership group, but there is no significant relation between executive salary and the CARs for the other groups. Although not statistically significant, the results imply that an increase in the proportion of managerial ownership may lead to better stock performance around M&A announcements for the acquiring firms with a low level of managerial ownership but a high level of salary.

Our study provides evidence on the influence of merger and acquisitions on the stock performance and accounting performance of the acquiring firms in the Chinese market. More importantly, we investigate the characteristics of executive compensation in the acquiring firms and how executive compensation can affect managerial decisions in M&A transactions. Our findings have some implications for improving the efficiency of merger and acquisitions. They also indicate a lack of motivation in executive compensation in Chinese firms, especially state-owned firms, suggesting a need for a more efficient link between executive compensation and firm performance.

References

Agrawal, Anup, Jeffrey Jaffe, and Gershon Mandelker, 1992, The post-merger performance of acquiring firms: A re-examination of an anomaly. *Journal of Finance* 47, 1605-1621.

Alexandridis, G. and A. Antoniou, 2006, Valuation Effects of Short Sale Constraints: The Case of Corporate Takeovers, *European Financial Management*, 12 (5): 747–62.

Andrade, Gregor, Mark Mitchell, and Erik Stafford, 2001, New evidence and perspectives on mergers? *Journal of Economic Perspectives* 15, 103-120.

Asquith, P., 1983, Merger bids, uncertainty, and stockholder returns. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 11(1-4), 51.

Bajaj, Mukesh, and Anand M. Vijh, 1995, Trading behavior and the unbiasedness of the market reaction to dividend announcements, *Journal of Finance* 50, 255-279.

Barber, B. M., & Lyon, J. D., 1997, Detecting long-run abnormal stock returns: The empirical power and specification of test statistics. *Journal of Financial Economics* 43(3), 341.

Barney, Jay, 1991, Firm Resources and Sustained Competitive Advantage, *Journal of Management*, 17(1), 99-120.

Bhabra, Harjeet S. and Huang, Jiayin, 2013, An empirical investigation of mergers and acquisitions by Chinese listed companies, 1997–2007. *Journal of Multinational Financial Management* 23 (2013) 186–207.

Bliss, R. and Rosen, R., 2001, CEO compensation and bank mergers, *Journal of Financial Economics*, 61, 107-139.

Boateng, A., Qian, W., & Tianle, Y., 2008, Cross-border M&As by Chinese firms: An analysis of strategic motives and performance. *Thunderbird International Business Review* 50(4), 259.

Bradley, Michael. Desai, Anand. & Kim, Han., 1988, Synergistic gains from corporate acquisitions and their division between the stockholders of target and acquiring firms. *Journal of financial economics*. 21, 3-40

Brown, S. J., & Warner, J. B., 1980, Measuring security price performance. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 8(3), 205-258.

Brown, D., Ryngaert, M., 1991, The Mode of Acquisition in Takeovers: Taxes and Asymmetric Information, *Journal of Finance*, 46, 653-669

Bruner, R. F. (2002). Does M&A pay? A survey of evidence for the decision-maker. *Journal of Applied Finance*, 12(1), 48.

Chatterjee, S., 1986, Types of synergy and economic value: The impact of acquisitions on merging and rival firms. *Strategic Management Journal* 7(2), 119.

Chen, G., Firth, M., & Xu, L., 2009, Does the type of ownership control matter? Evidence from china's listed companies. *Journal of Banking & Finance* 33(1), 171.

Chen, Y. 1998. Ownership Structure and Corporate Performance: Some Chinese

Evidence, Unpublished manuscript, San Francisco State University.

Chi, J., Sun, Q., & Young, M., 2009, Performance and characteristics of acquiring firms in the Chinese stock markets. SSRN Working Paper Series.

Datta, D. K and G. Puia, 1995, Cross-border Acquisitions: An Examination of the Influence of Relatedness and Cultural Fit on Shareholder Value Creation in the US Acquiring Firms, *Management International Review*, 35(4), 337-359

Datta, Iskandar-Datta, and Raman, 2001, Executive Compensation and Corporate Acquisition Decisions, *The Journal of Finance* Vol. 56, No. 6, pp. 2299-2336.

Dickerson, A. P., Gibson, H. D., & Tsakalotos, E., 1997, The impact of acquisitions on company performance: Evidence from a large panel of UK firms. *Oxford Economic Papers*, 49(3), 344-361.

Eckbo, B.E., R. Giammarino, and R. Heinkel, 1990. Assymetric Information and the Medium of Exchange in Takeovers: Theory and Tests, *Review of Financial Studies* 3, 651-675.

Eckbo, B. E., & Thorburn, K. S., 2009, Gains to bidder firms revisited: Domestic and foreign acquisitions in Canada. *Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis*, 35(01), 1-25.

Feng, G., Wu, L. (2001). The empirical study of M&A performance in Chinese listed firms. *Economic Research Journal* 36(1), 54-68.

Firth, M. (1991), "Corporate takeovers, stockholders returns and executive rewards", *Managerial and Decision Economics*, 12(6), pp. 421-428

Franks, Julian, Robert Harris, and Sheridan Titman, 1991, The postmerger share-price per-formance of acquiring firms, *Journal of Financial Economics* 29, 81-96.

Gregory, Alan, and Steve McCorriston, 2005, Foreign acquisitions by UK limited companies: Short- and Long-run performance, *Journal of Empirical Finance*, 12, 99-125.

Grinstein, Y. and Hribar, P., 2004, CEO compensation and incentives: Evidence from M&A bonuses, *Journal of Financial Economics*, 73, 119-144

Hall, B., and J. Liebman. 1998, Are CEOs Really Paid Like Bureaucrats? , *Quarterly Journal of Economics* 103: 653-91.

Haugen, R. A., & Jon G. Udell., 1972, Rates of return to stockholders of acquired companies. *The Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis*, 7(1), 1387-1398.

Healy, P. M., Palepu, K. G., & Ruback, R. S., 1992, Does corporate performance improve after mergers? *Journal of Financial Economics*, 31(2), 135.

Jensen, M., and W. Meckling. 1976, Theory of the Firm: Managerial Behavior, Agency Costs, and Ownership Structure, *Journal of Financial Economics*, 3 (4), 305-60.

Jensen, M., and K. Murphy, 1990, Performance Pay and Top-Management Incentives, *Journal of Political Economy* 98: 225-64.

Jensen, Michael, and Richard Ruback, 1983, The market for corporate control: The scientific evidence, *Journal of Financial Economics* 11, 5-50.

Jensen, Michael C., 1986, Agency Costs of Free Cash Flow, Corporate Finance and Takeovers, *American Economic Review*, 76, 323-29

Jensen, Michael, 1988, Takeovers: Their causes and consequences, *Journal of Economic Perspectives* 2(1), 21-48.

Kato, Takao and Cheryl Long. 2005. Executive Compensation, Firm Performance, and State Ownership in China: Evidence from New Panel Data, William Davidson Institute Working Paper no. 690, University of Michigan.

Kang, J. K., 1993, The international market for corporate control: Mergers and acquisitions of US firms by Japanese firms, *Journal of Financial Economics*, 34(3), 345-371

Kuipers, D., D. Miller and A. Patel, 2002, 'Shareholder wealth effects in the cross-border market for corporate control', Working paper, Indiana University.

Lambert, R.A., and D.F. Larcker, 1987, An Analysis of the Use of Accounting and MarketMeasures of Performance in Executive Compensation Contracts, *Journal ofAccounting Research Supplement*, 85-125.

Lambert, R., D., Larcker, and K., Weigelt, 1992. The structure of organizational incentives, *Administrative Science Quarterly*, 38, 3, 438-461.

Lewellen, W. G. and A. Rosenfeld, 1985, Merger decisions and executive stock ownership in acquiring firms, *Journal of Accounting and Economics*, 7, pp. 209-31.

Li, ZengQuan, 2000, Firm Performance and Incentives in China, *Accounting Research*, Jan, 2001.

Loughran, Timothy, and Anand Vijh, 1997, Do long-term shareholders benefit from corporate acquisitions? *Journal of Finance* 52, 1765-1790.

Lu, Q. (2004). Do mergers destroy value? Evidence from failed bids. Working Paper, Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University

Masulis, R. W., Wang, C., & Xie, F., 2007, Corporate governance and acquirer returns. *The Journal of Finance*, 62(4), 1851.

McWilliams, A. and Siegel, D., 1997, Eventstudiesin management research: Theoretical and empirical issues, *Academy of Management Journal*, 40, 626-657.

Meeks, G., 1977, Disappointing marriage: A study of the gains from merger. Cambridge; New York: Cambridge University Press.

Moeller, S. B., Schlingemann, F. P., & Stulz, R. M., 2004, Firm size and the gains from acquisitions. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 73(2), 201.

Morck, R., A. Shleifer, and R. Vishny. 1988. "Management Ownership and Market Valuation: An Empirical Analysis." *Journal of Financial Economics* 20: 293-316.

Morck, R., Shleifer, A., & Vishny, R. W., 1990, Do managerial objectives drive bad acquisitions? *The Journal of Finance*, 45(1), 31-48.

Morck, R., & Yeung, B., 1992, Internalization: An event study test, *Journal of International Economics*, 33(1-2), 41-56.

Mulherin, J. H., & Boone, A. L., 2000, Comparing acquisitions and divestitures. *Journal of Corporate Finance*, 6(2), 117-139.

Myers, S. C., & Majluf, N. S., 1984, Corporate financing and investment decisions when firms have information that investors do not have. *NBER Working Paper*, Travlos (1987)

Patell, J. A., 1976, Corporate forecasts of earnings per share and stock price behavior:

Empirical test, Journal of Accounting Research 14, 246-276.

Pettway, R. H., & Yamada, T., 1986, Mergers in Japan and their impacts upon stockholders' wealth. *Financial Management*, 15(4), 43-52.

Reuer J,J. S. Oded, R. Ragozzino, 2004, Mitigating risk in international mergers and acquisitions: The role of contingent payouts, *Journal of International Business Studies*, 35, 9-32

Roll, Richard, 1986, The hubris hypothesis of corporate takeovers, Journal of Business 59, 197-216. Shleifer, Andrei, and Robert Vishny, 1988, Value maximization and the acquisition process, *Journal of Economic Perspectives* 2, 7-20.

Schwert, G. W., 1996, Markup pricing in mergers and acquisitions, *Journal of Financial Economics* 41(2), 153-192.

Sicherman, N. W. and Pettway, R. H., 1992, Wealth Effects for Buyers and Sellers of the Same Divested Assets, *Financial Management* 21(4), 119-128

Travlos, N. G., 1987, Corporate takeover bids, methods of payment, and bidding firms' stock returns. *The Journal of Finance*, 42(4), 943-963.

Wang, C., Chu, C., & Li, X., 2001, The empirical study on the restructuring performance in Shanghai and Shenzhen stock markets. *China Securities Daily*, 9th, Jan.

Weston, J. F., Siu, J. A., and Johnson, B.A. (2001). Takeovers, restructuring and corporate governance. (3rd ed.). New Jersey: Prentice Hall.

Zalewski, D., 2001, Takeovers, Fairness, and Public Policy, *Journal of Economic Issues*, 35(2), 431-37.

Table 1: Distribution and Descriptive Statistics of Merges and Acquisitions

The table consists of 259 Merges and Acquisitions completed during the period from 2005 to 2010 in China. The acquiring firms are listed in the SDC database and have executive compensation data in the Chinese Wind's database. The acquiring firms are Chinese domestic firms and 100 percent own the target firms after the M&A transactions. The full sample is divided into several subgroups by the methods of payment, the relatedness of acquiring and target firms, the industry sectors of bidders and the ownership structure of bidders. Cash only refers to M&A deals financed with 100 percent cash. Non-Cash refers to M&A deals partially or wholly financed with equity. An acquiring firm is considered as related to its target if it is in the same industry sector with its targets. Otherwise, the acquiring firm is unrelated to its target. SOE refers to an acquiring firm government ownership more than 50 percent. The information on acquirers' industry sector, ownership structure and accounting data is obtained from the Chinese Wind's database. Firm size is measured by acquirers' assets; leverage is measured by the ratio of debt to equity; Average profitability is measured by the mean of acquirers' ROA, ROE and profit margin during three years prior to the M&A announcements

Panel A: Distribution of Merger and Acquisitions by Year (2005-2010)

Year	Number of Acquisitions	% of Sample	Average Deal Value
			(in Millions RMB)
2005	8	3.09	145.22
2006	25	9.65	389.63
2007	38	14.67	393.06
2008	59	22.78	396.55
2009	78	30.12	400.29
2010	51	19.69	403.63
Total	259	100	1554.1

Panel B: Distribution of Mergers and Acquisitions by Year and Deal Characteristics

	Year										
	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	Total				
Method	of Payme	nt									
Cash-Only	8	17	28	46	50	33	182				
Non-Cash	0	8	10	13	28	18	77				
Total	8	25	38	59	78	51	259				
Industry I	Relatedne	ss									
Related	5	17	_ 29	38	57	33	179				
Unrelated	3	8	9	21	21	18	80				
Total	8	25	38	59	78	51	259				
Bidders' In	dustry Se	ctor									
Construction	0	5	10	8	17	3	43				
Industrials	4	6	6	9	12	11	48				
Information Technology	1	2	1	2	4	6	16				
Mining&Materials	1	6	8	18	18	14	65				
Wholesales&Retail	ls 2	6	8	19	18	14	67				
Others	0	0	5	3	9	3	20				
Total	8	25	38	59	78	51	259				
Bidders' Own	ership Stı	ructure									
SOE	0	3	7	13	11	5	39				
Non-SOE	8	22	31	46	67	46	220				
Total	8	25	38	59	78	51	259				

Panel C: Descriptive Statistics of Deal-Specific and Firm-Specific Characteristics (in Millions RMB)

	Number of	Fransaction)	_	Average		oility (%)
	Obs.	Value	Firm Size	Leverage	ROA	ROE	Profit Margin
Full Sample	259	1554.1	8463.55	1.59	4.22	8.24	8.65
Cash Only	182	437.63	9782.09	1.86	4.55	8.47	5.59
Non-Cash	77	4314.27	5347.02	0.96	3.39	7.66	16.48
SOE	39	2024.98	26809.92	1.22	8.22	18.22	11.7
Non-SOE	220	1474.89	5211.24	1.66	3.55	6.57	8.14

Table 2: Compensation Characteristics of Top Executives in Acquiring Firms

The table consists of 259 Merges and Acquisitions completed during the period from 2005 to 2010 in China. The acquiring firms are listed in the SDC database and have executive compensation data in the Chinese Wind's database. Cash Income includes annual salary, bonus and other annual compensation paid to executives in cash. Cash Income and Managerial Ownership are recorded at the year-end preceding the M&A announcements. The full sample is divided into two subsamples by the ownership structure of acquiring firms. SOE refers to an acquiring firm government ownership more than 50 percent. The acquiring firms are categorized into low/high salary groups as well as low/high managerial ownership groups. A firm is categorized in the low salary/managerial ownership group if executive salary/ownership is at or below the median, otherwise the firm is in the high salary/managerial ownership group. The information on acquirers' ownership structure and accounting data is obtained from the Chinese Wind's database. Firm size is measured by acquirers' assets; Leverage is measured by the ratio of debt to equity (total debt divided by total equity); Average profitability is measured by the mean of acquirers' ROA, ROE and profit margin during three years prior to the M&A announcements.

Panel A: Executive Compensation in Acquiring Firms

	Number of Obs.	Mean	Std.	Maximum	Minimum	Median
Cash Income	e(In Thousand	ls RMB)				
Full Sample	259	280.76	318.2	2427.42	17.14	174.2
SOE	39	426.22	547.72	2427.42	38.3	265.12
Non-SOE	220	254.97	250.59	1615.33	17.14	160.73
Managerial Ow	nership (%)					
Full Sample	259	4.6	13.72	75.38	0	0
SOE	39	0.04	0.25	1.54	0	0
Non-SOE	220	5.41	14.75	75.38	0	0.01

Panel B: Firm-Specific Characteristics Categorized by Executive Compensation

	Firm Size	Leverage	Avera	ige Profitabil	ity (%)
	(in Millions RMB)	_	ROA	ROE	Profit Margin
Cash Income					
Low Salary	2220.09	1.16	2.08	3.76	9.05
High Salary	14755.42	2.03	6.66	13.31	8.2
Managerial Ownership (%)					
Low Ownership	11701.53	1.41	3.82	7.61	5.71
High Ownership	5200.48	1.78	4.6	8.84	11.42

Table 3 Average cumulative abnormal returns (CARs) of acquiring firms

This table presents the CARs of acquiring firms over 18 event windows during a period from 42 days prior to and 126 days after M&A announcements for our full sample. We estimate the CARs of acquiring firms based on the market model with a 253 trading day estimation period from day -380 to day -127 prior to M&A announcements. The acquiring firms are categorized into low/high salary groups as well as low/high managerial ownership groups. A firm is categorized in the low salary/managerial ownership group if executive salary/ownership is at or below the median, otherwise the firm is in the high salary/managerial ownership group. We report the CARs for the full sample in Panel A; the CARs for low and high salary group in Panel B; the CARs for the low and high ownership group in Panel C; and the CARs for the low salary-low ownership group and the high salary-high ownership group in Panel D. We also report the mean and median difference between the subsamples categorized by executive compensation.

Panel A

Day	N	Mean Cumulative Abnormal Return	Precision Weighted CAAR	Positive: Negative	Patell Z	Generalized Sign Z
(-42,-1)	232	2.83%	3.75%	136:96>>>	3.347***	4.546***
(-21,-1)	197	1.73%	2.36%	106:91>>	3.127**	2.827**
(-10,-1)	183	1.21%	1.51%	87:96	2.903**	1.017
(-5,-1)	178	0.68%	0.91%	86:92	2.478*	1.211
(-2,-1)	170	0.52%	0.68%	80:90	2.962**	0.853
(-1,0)	232	1.47%	0.94%	133:99>>>	3.580***	4.149***
(-1,+1)	235	1.76%	1.26%	133:102>>>	3.997***	3.950***
(-2,+2)	239	2.68%	2.43%	138:101>>>	6.267***	4.340***
(-5,+5)	242	2.52%	2.61%	128:114>>	4.499***	2.847**
(-10,+10)	243	3.40%	3.72%	131:112>>	4.694***	3.172**
(0,+1)	234	1.75%	1.10%	126:108>>	3.986***	3.093**
(0,+2)	236	2.34%	1.75%	131:105>>>	5.526***	3.621***
(0,+5)	238	2.06%	1.70%	124:114>>	3.754***	2.577**
(0,+10)	240	2.52%	2.21%	122:118>	3.698***	2.192*
(0,+21)	241	2.17%	1.94%	117:124	2.292*	1.482
(0,+42)	243	1.60%	1.56%	120:123)	1.267	1.750\$
(0,+126)	244	5.04%	2.14%	125:119>	1.052	2.335*
(-42,+126)	244	7.73%	5.89%	126:118>	2.420*	2.464*

Panel B

		HS			LS		Diff. in Mean		Diff. in Median	
CAR	N	Mean	Median	N	Mean	Median	Diff_Test T	P-value	Diff_Test Z	P-value
(-42,-1)	116	0.0317***	0.0188	116	0.0248**	0.0398	-0.2913	0.7711	-0.0610	0.9516
(-21,-1)	102	0.0247**	0.0171	95	0.0093	-0.0066	-0.8582	0.3918	-1.2730	0.2030
(-10,-1)	95	0.0131*	0.0074	88	0.0110*	-0.0084	-0.1559	0.8763	-1.1560	0.2475
(-5,-1)	91	0.0049	-0.0003	87	0.0087	-0.0009	0.3590	0.7200	0.4030	0.6869
(-2,-1)	87	0.0029	-0.0058	83	0.0076	0.0012	0.6505	0.5163	0.7560	0.4497
(-1,0)	120	0.0157***	0.0070	112	0.0136**	0.0026	-0.2173	0.8282	-0.5210	0.6026
(-1,+1)	121	0.0160***	0.0063	114	0.0193***	0.0014	0.2916	0.7709	-0.3800	0.7038
(-2,+2)	121	0.0207**	0.0146	118	0.0331***	0.0059	0.9191	0.3590	0.0060	0.9955
(-5,+5)	121	0.0217**	0.0075	121	0.0287***	0.0060	0.3748	0.7082	-0.1220	0.9028
(-10,+10)	121	0.0212**	0.0079	122	0.0467***	0.0152	1.1020	0.2716	0.7780	0.4368
(0,+1)	121	0.0159***	0.0063	113	0.0191***	0.0004	0.2939	0.7691	-0.5770	0.5640
(0,+2)	121	0.0186***	0.0087	115	0.0285***	0.0014	0.7629	0.4463	-0.0850	0.9324
(0,+5)	121	0.0180***	0.0151	117	0.0232***	-0.0052	0.2882	0.7734	-0.6110	0.5411
(0,+10)	121	0.0109	-0.0041	119	0.0397***	0.0058	1.3700	0.1720	1.2130	0.2250
(0,+21)	121	0.0013	-0.0294	120	0.0422***	0.0245	1.7074	0.0891	2.1010	0.0356
(0,+42)	121	-0.0032	-0.0188	122	0.0350	0.0135	1.3003	0.1947	1.2610	0.2072
(0,+126)	121	-0.0383	-0.0430	123	0.1376	0.0517	1.9273	0.0551	2.0510	0.0403
(-42,+126)	121	-0.0079	-0.0056	123	0.1610	0.0368	1.7918	0.0744	1.4740	0.1405

Panel C

		НО			LO		Diff. in Mean		Diff. in Median	
CAR	N	Mean	Median	N	Mean	Median	Diff_Test	P-value	Diff_Test	P-value
(-42,-1)	112	0.0172	0.0357	120	0.0386***	0.0336	0.8957	0.3714	0.1140	0.9096
(-21,-1)	97	0.0090	0.0129	100	0.0253**	0.0063	0.9042	0.3670	0.4320	0.6654
(-10,-1)	90	0.0048	-0.0132	93	0.0192**	0.0004	1.0821	0.2807	1.4070	0.1595
(-5,-1)	87	0.0027	-0.0009	91	0.0106	0.0024	0.7520	0.4530	0.5780	0.5635
(-2,-1)	83	0.0000	-0.0036	87	0.0102	0.0011	1.4147	0.1590	1.3760	0.1687
(-1,0)	113	0.0202***	0.0026	119	0.0094	0.0049	-1.1566	0.2486	-0.1110	0.9120
(-1,+1)	115	0.0166***	0.0009	120	0.0186***	0.0102	0.1778	0.8590	0.9640	0.3352
(-2,+2)	116	0.0222***	0.0052	123	0.0312***	0.0173	0.6695	0.5038	1.0450	0.2962
(-5,+5)	117	0.0209***	0.0013	125	0.0292***	0.0119	0.4426	0.6585	0.5280	0.5973
(-10,+10)	117	0.0224**	0.0151	126	0.0448***	0.0070	0.9693	0.3334	0.6430	0.5203
(0,+1)	115	0.0183***	0.0038	119	0.0167***	0.0038	-0.1462	0.8839	0.2420	0.8085
(0,+2)	116	0.0222***	0.0074	120	0.0246***	0.0052	0.1859	0.8527	0.0670	0.9468
(0,+5)	117	0.0189***	0.0119	121	0.0221***	0.0020	0.1787	0.8583	0.0440	0.9647
(0,+10)	117	0.0187**	0.0058	123	0.0314***	-0.0041	0.6053	0.5456	0.1870	0.8517
(0,+21)	117	0.0128	-0.0044	124	0.0301**	-0.0145	0.7169	0.4741	0.2940	0.7688
(0,+42)	118	0.0187	0.0123	125	0.0135	-0.0245	-0.1770	0.8597	-0.3270	0.7438
(0,+126)	118	0.0902***	0.0440	126	0.0131	-0.0099	-0.8396	0.4020	-0.4540	0.6500
(-42,+126)	118	0.1066	0.0451	126	0.0498	-0.0117	-0.5983	0.5502	-0.2830	0.7771

Panel D

		нѕно			LSLO		Diff. in Mean		Diff. in Median	
CAR	N	Mean	Median	N	Mean	Median	Diff_Test	P-value	Diff_Test	P-value
(-42,-1)	59	0.0443***	0.0470	63	0.0565***	0.0409	-0.3 4 93	0.7275	0.0280	0.9775
(-21,-1)	51	0.0253**	0.0145	49	0.0265**	-0.0078	-0.0424	0.9662	-0.6520	0.5147
(-10,-1)	46	0.0076	0.0023	44	0.0202***	-0.0022	-0.6227	0.5351	0.1610	0.8718
(-5,-1)	44	0.0025	-0.0003	44	0.0144**	0.0033	-0.7575	0.4508	0.6590	0.5097
(-2,-1)	42	-0.0008	-0.0044	42	0.0144***	0.0082	-1.3466	0.1818	1.4760	0.1399
(-1,0)	60	0.0187***	0.0034	59	0.0060	0.0016	0.9446	0.3468	-0.4250	0.6707
(-1,+1)	61	0.0132***	0.0020	60	0.0183***	0.0048	-0.3424	0.7326	0.4720	0.6371
(-2,+2)	61	0.0194***	0.0146	63	0.0400***	0.0192	-1.1638	0.2468	0.7920	0.4282
(-5,+5)	61	0.0285***	0.0187	65	0.0425***	0.0234	-0.6028	0.5478	0.3250	0.7455
(-10,+10)	61	0.0230***	0.0264	66	0.0679***	0.0430	-1.4974	0.1368	1.0810	0.2797
(0,+1)	61	0.0164***	0.0072	59	0.0179***	0.0021	-0.1090	0.9134	-0.1860	0.8522
(0,+2)	61	0.0200***	0.0138	60	0.0320***	0.0026	-0.7101	0.4791	0.0570	0.9545
(0,+5)	61	0.0267***	0.0198	61	0.0349***	-0.0013	-0.3586	0.7205	-0.3000	0.7645
(0,+10)	61	0.0172**	0.0245	63	0.0571***	0.0233	-1.4307	0.1551	1.0470	0.2951
(0,+21)	61	0.0052	-0.0183	64	0.0607***	0.0555	-1.7274	0.0866	1.6300	0.1031
(0,+42)	61	0.0126	0.0168	65	0.0435***	0.0383	-0.7926	0.4295	0.8080	0.4191
(0,+126)	61	0.0031	0.0391	66	0.0981***	0.0713	-1.4284	0.1557	1.0370	0.2995
(-42,+126)	61	0.0459	0.0628	66	0.1520***	0.1041	-1.3905	0.1669	0.7380	0.4603

Table 4 Three-year BHAR of acquiring firms after M&As

This table presents three-year BHAR of acquiring firms after M&A announcements. BHAR for each acquirer firm is measured as the difference in returns on a sample firm and its benchmark through a buy-and-hold investment strategy. The benchmark here is the three-year BHR on the market index. Since distribution of BHRs around firm-specific events is skewed over long horizons, we use the bootstrap method to conduct significance tests. The acquiring firms are categorized into low/high salary groups as well as low/high managerial ownership groups. We report the results for the full sample, the high/low salary group and the high/low ownership group in Panel A; for the for the low salary-low ownership group, the low salary-high ownership group, the high salary-low ownership group and the high salary-high ownership group in Panel B. We also report the results of difference tests between the subsamples categorized by executive compensation.

Panel A

	Full Sample	Low Salary	High Salary	Test of Diff. (1) vs. (2)	Low Ownership	High Ownership	Test of Diff. (3) vs. (4)
		(1)	(2)	(p-value)	(3)	(4)	(p-value)
Sample Firms' 3-year BHR	0.5477	0.7510	0.3427		0.4677	0.6282	
Matched 3-year BHR	0.1341	0.1990	0.0687		0.1065	0.1620	
Difference	0.4135	0.5520	0.2740	0.0408*	0.3613	0.4662	0.4414
Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.000***	0.000***	0.000***		0.000***	0.000***	

Panel B

	Low	Salary	High S	High Salary		
	Low Ownership	High Ownership	Low Ownership	High Ownership	Test of Diff. (1) vs. (4)	
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(p-value)	
Sample Firms' 3-year	•	-	-			
BHR	0.7126	0.7932	0.1991	0.4755		
Matched 3-year BHR	0.1924	0.2062	0.0122	0.1210		
Difference	0.5202	0.5869	0.1869	0.3545	0.3924	
Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.000***	0.000***	0.049*	0.000***		

Table 5 Pre- and post-acquisition accounting performance of acquiring firms and the difference tests

This table presents three accounting performance measures, ROA, ROE and Profit Margin of acquiring firms during three years after M&A announcements. ROA is computed as operating profit (EBIT) divided by total assets. ROE is computed as Net Income divided by Shareholder's Equity. Profit Margin is computed as Net Income divided by Revenue. We estimate the "normal performance" as the average ROA, ROE and Profit Margin from four years to one year before the announcement year (pre-Mean). We report the difference between the "normal performance" and the post-acquisition performance during three years after M&A announcements in Panel A. We also report the difference for the subsample categorized as low/high salary groups and low/high managerial ownership groups in Panel B and C. We also report the results of difference tests between the subsamples categorized by executive compensation.

Panel A

Accounting Performance	Pre_Mean	Post_Mean	+1	+2	+3	Test of Diff. (p-value)			
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(1) vs. (2)	(1) vs. (3)	(1) vs. (4)	(1) vs. (5)
ROA	0.0422	0.0534	0.0581	0.0487	0.0470	0.0477**	0.0912*	0.1300	0.2135
ROE	0.0824	0.1158	0.1052	0.1195	0.1228	0.5189	0.5156	0.0418**	0.0395**
Profit Margin	0.0865	0.1472	0.2900	0.0313	0.1203	0.3092	0.0886*	0.6444	0.021**

Panel B

		Low Salary	High Salary	Test of Diff. (1) vs. (2)	Low Ownership	High Ownership	Test of Diff. (3) vs. (4)
		(1)	(2)	(p-value)	(3)	(4)	(p-value)
	Pre_Mean	0.0208	0.0666		0.0382	0.0460	
ROA	Post_Mean	0.0476	0.0602		0.0478	0.0587	
	Difference	0.0268	-0.0065	0.0031**	0.0097	0.0127	0.7902
	Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.0053***	0.2015		0.1973	0.1350	
	Pre_Mean	0.0376	0.1331		0.0761	0.0884	
ROE	Post_Mean	0.0753	0.1215		0.1211	0.0741	
	Difference	0.0377	-0.0117	0.2741	0.0449	-0.0143	0.1883
	Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.3516	0.4274		0.0641	0.7018	
	Pre_Mean	0.0905	0.0820		0.0571	0.1142	
Due fit	Post_Mean	0.2797	0.0201		0.0500	0.2603	
Profit Margin	Difference	0.1892	-0.0619	0.0754	-0.0070	0.1460	0.2787
	Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.0266**	0.5926		0.9521	0.0754*	

Panel C

		Low	Salary	High Sala	ıry		
		Low Ownership	High Ownership	Low Ownership	High Ownership	Test of Diff. (1) vs. (4)	
		(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(p-value)	
	Pre_Mean	0.0187	0.0229	0.0632	0.0695		
ROA	Post_Mean	0.0383	0.0572	0.0601	0.0602		
	Difference	0.0196	0.0343	-0.0031	-0.0093	0.0307*	
	Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.0915*	0.0277**	0.7127	0.1321		
	Pre_Mean	0.0378	0.0373	0.1255	0.1395		
ROE	Post_Mean	0.1098	0.0384	0.1355	0.1098		
	Difference	0.0721	0.0010	0.0100	-0.0297	0.0229*	
	Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.0680*	0.9888	0.6575	0.1251		
	Pre_Mean	0.0171	0.1676	0.1084	0.0600		
Duefit	Post_Mean	0.1707	0.3942	-0.1051	0.1241		
Profit Margin	Difference	0.1536	0.2266	-0.2136	0.0641	0.2871	
3	Test of Diff. (p-value)	0.0353**	0.1526	0.3954	0.1225		

Table 6 Cross-sectional regression analysis of the CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1)

for acquiring firms

This table presents the results of cross-sectional regressions of the CARs for acquiring firms using three models. The dependent variable is CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1), regressed against executive compensation and ownership, controlling a variety of firmand deal-specific variables including leverage, firm size, ROA, SOE indicator, method of payment and relatedness of bidders and targets. The acquiring firms are categorized into low/high salary groups as well as low/high managerial ownership groups. We report the results for the full sample in Panel A; for the high salary group in Panel B; the low salary group in Panel C; for the high ownership group in Panel D; the low ownership group in Panel E; for the high salary- high ownership group in Panel H; and for the low salary- low ownership group in Panel I.

Panel A	Full sample					
Variable		CAR(-1,0)		C	CAR(-1,1)	
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3
_cons	3.881	5.968	6.078	10.294	7.710	7.879
	(0.229)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.006)	(0.000)	(0.000)
leverage	-0.312	-0.252	-0.255	-0.453	-0.502	-0.511
	(0.205)	(0.284)	(0.278)	(0.112)	(0.064)	(0.06)
paym	-4.643	-4.403	-4.388	-5.626	-5.501	-5.514
	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)
diff_ind	-1.492	-1.337	-1.342	-1.752	-1.716	-1.750
	(0.171)	(0.218)	(0.216)	(0.161)	(0.167)	(0.159)
soe_dummy	-1.273	-0.819	-0.853	-0.500	-0.443	-0.572
	(0.403)	(0.584)	(0.566)	(0.772)	(0.794)	(0.734)
roa	0.109	0.126	0.128	0.146	0.144	0.145
	(0.094)	(0.047)	(0.045)	(0.052)	(0.049)	(0.049)
logasset	0.659			-0.932		
	(0.501)			(0.405)		
salary		-0.112			-0.247	
		(0.489)			(0.184)	
slogasset			-0.575			-1.076
			(0.443)			(0.212)
ownership	-0.042	-0.048	-0.047	-0.059	-0.053	-0.050
	(0.309)	(0.231)	(0.241)	(0.216)	(0.257)	(0.278)
N	210	210	210	213	213	213
R^2	0.093	0.093	0.094	0.120	0.125	0.124
Adjusted R ²	0.062	0.062	0.062	0.090	0.095	0.094

Panel B HS

Variable		CAR(-1,0)			CAR(-1,1)	
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3
_cons	8.457	5.308	5.720	15.648	4.629	5.203
	(0.115)	(0.025)	(0.018)	(0.005)	(0.054)	(0.035)
leverage	-0.077	-0.228	-0.271	-0.023	-0.523	-0.589
	(0.890)	(0.656)	(0.596)	(0.968)	(0.322)	(0.267)
paym	-4.078	-3.721	-3.627	-2.915	-2.573	-2.500
	(0.030)	(0.050)	(0.058)	(0.118)	(0.181)	(0.198)
diff_ind	0.765	0.817	0.823	2.721	2.210	2.158
	(0.662)	(0.632)	(0.628)	(0.128)	(0.210)	(0.220)
roa	0.057	0.053	0.052	0.068	0.026	0.022
	(0.660)	(0.676)	(0.682)	(0.607)	(0.840)	(0.866)
soe_dummy	-0.291	-0.428	-0.614	-0.140	-1.021	-1.341
	(0.884)	(0.824)	(0.748)	(0.945)	(0.606)	(0.497)
logasset	-1.131			-3.763		
	(0.476)			(0.021)		
salary		-0.246			-0.410	
		(0.238)			(0.058)	
slogasset			-1.284			-1.953
			(0.213)			(0.068)
ownership	-0.038	-0.031	-0.029	-0.068	-0.032	-0.028
	(0.530)	(0.594)	(0.618)	(0.268)	(0.589)	(0.639)
N	103	103	103	104	104	104
R^2	0.070	0.079	0.080	0.117	0.101	0.099
Adjusted R ²	0.002	0.011	0.013	0.053	0.036	0.033

Panel C LS

Variable		CAR(-1,0)			CAR(-1,1)			
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3		
_cons	0.437	8.252	9.077	5.995	11.092	11.489		
	(0.938)	(0.001)	(0.000)	(0.393)	(0.000)	(0.000)		
leverage	-0.458	-0.353	-0.356	-0.696	-0.627	-0.628		
	(0.094)	(0.190)	(0.181)	(0.044)	(0.064)	(0.061)		
paym	-4.842	-4.542	-4.653	-7.307	-7.107	-7.159		
	(0.002)	(0.003)	(0.002)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)		
diff_ind	-3.159	-3.233	-3.168	-4.825	-4.846	-4.806		
	(0.033)	(0.030)	(0.033)	(0.009)	(0.009)	(0.009)		
soe_dummy	0.129	0.161	0.164	0.184	0.204	0.205		
	(0.093)	(0.038)	(0.032)	(0.057)	(0.036)	(0.033)		
roa	-2.243	-2.008	-2.075	-0.123	-0.080	-0.132		
	(0.385)	(0.438)	(0.421)	(0.968)	(0.979)	(0.966)		
logasset	2.230			1.522				
	(0.212)			(0.494)				
salary		-1.129			-0.542			
		(0.520)			(0.801)			
slogasset			-6.019			-2.909		
			(0.275)			(0.667)		
ownership	-0.076	-0.083	-0.074	-0.086	-0.091	-0.087		
	(0.200)	(0.168)	(0.218)	(0.249)	(0.222)	(0.247)		
N	107	107	107	109	109	109		
R^2	0.170	0.160	0.167	0.216	0.213	0.214		
Adjusted R ²	0.111	0.101	0.108	0.162	0.159	0.160		

Panel D HO

Variable		CAR(-1,0)			CAR(-1,1)	
•	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3
_cons	6.448	9.138	9.221	12.951	9.964	10.069
	(0.282)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.049)	(0.000)	(0.000)
leverage	-0.067	0.024	0.017	-0.087	-0.170	-0.186
	(0.875)	(0.950)	(0.966)	(0.853)	(0.690)	(0.662)
paym	-7.912	-7.744	-7.724	-8.953	-8.794	-8.792
	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)	(0.000)
diff_ind	-2.570	-2.340	-2.329	-3.174	-3.070	-3.091
	(0.123)	(0.167)	(0.167)	(0.083)	(0.098)	(0.094)
roa	0.113	0.132	0.133	0.198	0.192	0.192
	(0.211)	(0.133)	(0.130)	(0.048)	(0.047)	(0.047)
soe_dummy	-3.739	-3.548	-3.518	-1.693	-1.782	-1.744
	(0.241)	(0.264)	(0.268)	(0.628)	(0.608)	(0.616)
logasset	0.846			-1.048		
	(0.648)			(0.602)		
salary		-0.119			-0.237	
		(0.745)			(0.553)	
slogasset			-0.560			-0.949
			(0.698)			(0.549)
ownership	-0.056	-0.063	-0.062	-0.060	-0.053	-0.051
	(0.272)	(0.194)	(0.199)	(0.281)	(0.317)	(0.333)
N	109	109	109	111	111	111
R^2	0.191	0.190	0.191	0.206	0.207	0.207
Adjusted R ²	0.135	0.134	0.135	0.152	0.153	0.153

Panel E LO

Variable		CAR(-1,0)			CAR(-1,1)	<u> </u>
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3
_cons	1.909	1.261	1.388	8.219	3.596	3.780
	(0.556)	(0.426)	(0.389)	(0.055)	(0.090)	(0.080)
leverage	-0.742	-0.745	-0.747	-0.852	-0.918	-0.924
	(0.006)	(0.005)	(0.005)	(0.017)	(0.009)	(0.009)
paym	0.692	0.817	0.777	-0.460	-0.644	-0.726
	(0.624)	(0.555)	(0.575)	(0.807)	(0.728)	(0.696)
diff_ind	-0.076	-0.107	-0.141	0.178	-0.002	-0.063
	(0.953)	(0.933)	(0.912)	(0.915)	(0.999)	(0.970)
roa	0.108	0.114	0.113	0.082	0.066	0.063
	(0.240)	(0.204)	(0.210)	(0.504)	(0.584)	(0.603)
soe_dummy	0.158	0.387	0.275	0.207	0.036	-0.164
	(0.918)	(0.797)	(0.854)	(0.918)	(0.985)	(0.933)
logasset	-0.289			-1.704		
	(0.766)			(0.185)		
salary		-0.162			-0.267	
		(0.267)			(0.169)	
slogasset			-0.689			-1.070
			(0.340)			(0.266)
ownership	-202.949	-250.070	-248.761	314.972	163.670	168.305
	(0.713)	(0.646)	(0.649)	(0.668)	(0.823)	(0.818)
N	101	101	101	102	102	102
R^2	0.107	0.118	0.115	0.105	0.107	0.100
Adjusted R ²	0.040	0.052	0.049	0.039	0.040	0.033

HSHO Panel F CAR(-1,1) **Variable** CAR(-1,0) Model 2 Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 1 Model 3 _cons 4.574 8.901 9.188 14.081 5.534 5.719 (0.654)(0.022)(0.022)(0.140)(0.116)(0.117)leverage -0.293 -0.135 -0.186 0.181 -0.254-0.311 (0.723)(0.698)(0.639)(0.847)(0.792)(0.812)-8.299 -7.570 -7.529 -7.158 -6.670 -6.788 paym (0.004)(0.010)(0.011)(0.006)(0.014)(0.013)0.403 diff_ind -0.448 0.367 2.429 2.289 2.085 (0.896)(0.362)(0.428)(0.875)(0.887)(0.389)-1.187 -1.485 soe dummy -3.825 -3.999 -3.966 -1.601 (0.314)(0.295)(0.298)(0.736)(0.652)(0.676)0.026 0.047 0.043 0.208 0.176 0.170 roa (0.894)(0.810)(0.825)(0.260)(0.332)(0.349)1.274 -3.053 logasset (0.688)(0.295)salary -0.294 -0.457 (0.353)(0.576)slogasset -1.251 -1.537 (0.558)(0.441)ownership -0.034 -0.053 -0.050 -0.059 -0.036 -0.031 (0.454)(0.475)(0.411)(0.652)(0.582)(0.639)Ν 56 56 56 57 57 57 \mathbb{R}^2 0.184 0.187 0.187 0.225 0.222 0.217 Adjusted R² 0.065 0.068 0.069 0.115 0.111 0.106

Panel G **HSLO** CAR(-1,1) Variable CAR(-1,0) Model 2 Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 1 Model 3 _cons 8.996 0.088 0.622 13.202 -1.694 -1.062 (0.129)(0.978)(0.846)(0.053)(0.650)(0.780)leverage 0.377 -0.080 -0.129 0.490 -0.299 -0.361 (0.664)(0.761)(0.715)(0.923)(0.877)(0.622)2.230 2.591 2.620 5.250 5.576 5.588 paym (0.350)(0.285)(0.058)(0.058)(0.060)(0.287)diff_ind 1.592 1.118 3.338 2.412 2.347 1.157 (0.143)(0.299)(0.420)(0.551)(0.566)(0.315)1.991 0.990 -0.419 soe_dummy 1.235 0.902 -0.837 (0.353)(0.552)(0.663)(0.685)(0.865)(0.734)0.031 -0.016 -0.082 -0.178 -0.179 roa -0.016 (0.846)(0.917)(0.921)(0.657)(0.342)(0.343)-3.028 -5.006 logasset (0.065)(0.009)salary -0.318 -0.396 (0.093)(0.079)slogasset -1.595 -1.933 (0.111)(0.105)ownership 140.979 -79.555 -105.494 1695.886 1412.888 1388.247

(0.900)

47

0.087

-0.077

(0.077)

47

0.282

0.153

(0.161)

47

0.209

0.067

(0.173)

47

0.200

0.056

(0.924)

47

0.093

-0.070

(0.864)

47

0.107

-0.054

Ν

 \mathbb{R}^2

Adjusted R²

Panel H LSHO CAR(-1,1) Variable CAR(-1,0) Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 _cons 13.188 13.822 13.756 21.359 16.739 16.456 (0.204)(0.002)(0.002)(0.095)(0.002)(0.003)leverage -0.107 -0.008 -0.039 -0.432 -0.427 -0.460 (0.987)(0.939)(0.499)(0.501)(0.464)(0.838)-7.076 -7.372 -7.327 -9.286 -9.443 -9.389 paym (0.005)(0.003)(0.004)(0.003)(0.002)(0.002)diff_ind -5.080 -4.430 -4.223 -8.099 -7.272 -7.148 (0.084)(0.035)(0.064)(0.007)(0.015)(0.020)-4.507 soe dummy -3.514 -3.583 -3.682 -2.936 -3.057 (0.580)(0.665)(0.659)(0.712)(0.770)(0.761)0.152 0.204 0.196 0.238 0.263 0.252 roa (0.167)(0.091)(0.094)(0.080)(0.077)(0.080)logasset -0.877 -2.358 (0.778)(0.536)salary -3.632 -3.115 (0.321)(0.476)slogasset -11.733 -9.271 (0.327)(0.517)-0.088 ownership -0.110 -0.090 -0.080 -0.122 -0.095

(0.296)

53

0.262

0.147

(0.194)

54

0.291

0.184

(0.296)

54

0.293

0.186

(0.347)

54

0.292

0.184

(0.225)

53

0.263

0.148

(0.153)

53

0.247

0.130

Ν

 \mathbb{R}^2

Adjusted R²

Panel I LSLO

Variable		CAR(-1,0))		CAR(-1,1)	
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3
_cons	-4.110	1.800	2.234	-1.045	4.706	4.569
	(0.489)	(0.501)	(0.436)	(0.898)	(0.197)	(0.243)
leverage	-0.845	-0.819	-0.823	-0.935	-0.903	-0.900
	(0.004)	(0.005)	(0.005)	(0.019)	(0.024)	(0.024)
paym	-0.956	-0.055	-0.128	-4.353	-3.501	-3.396
	(0.627)	(0.976)	(0.943)	(0.115)	(0.169)	(0.178)
diff_ind	-0.470	-0.249	-0.294	-1.256	-0.949	-0.907
	(0.795)	(0.890)	(0.871)	(0.607)	(0.695)	(0.708)
soe_dummy	-1.615	-1.093	-1.058	0.056	0.309	0.335
	(0.511)	(0.660)	(0.668)	(0.986)	(0.924)	(0.917)
roa	0.175	0.177	0.171	0.163	0.182	0.184
	(0.131)	(0.136)	(0.154)	(0.313)	(0.270)	(0.268)
logasset	2.025			2.399		
	(0.330)			(0.406)		
salary		-0.523			0.741	
		(0.778)			(0.770)	
slogasset			-2.646			2.349
			(0.646)			(0.766)
ownership	-469.477	-464.190	-489.033	-777.350	-670.967	-668.508
	(0.554)	(0.567)	(0.546)	(0.484)	(0.552)	(0.554)
N	54	54	54	55	55	55
R^2	0.246	0.232	0.234	0.225	0.214	0.215
Adjusted R ²	0.131	0.115	0.117	0.109	0.097	0.098

Table 7 Cross-sectional regression analysis of the CARs for SOE/Non-SOE groups

This table presents the results of cross-sectional regressions of the CARs using three models for the SOE and Non-SOE subsample. The dependent variable is CARs over (-1, 0) and (-1, +1), regressed against executive compensation and ownership, controlling a variety of firm- and deal- specific variables including leverage, firm size, ROA, method of payment and relatedness of bidders and targets. We report the results of CARs for the SOE group in Panel A; the results of CARs for the Non-SOE group in Panel B.

Panel A	SOE							
Variable		CAR(-1,0)			CAR(-1,1)			
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model	1 Model 2	Model 3		
_cons	1.808	-1.397	-1.053	13.213	3 -1.409	-0.909		
	(0.758)	(0.698)	(0.770)	(0.042	2) (0.731)	(0.823)		
leverage	-2.694	-3.053	-3.155	-3.187	7 -4.131	-4.321		
	(0.025)	(0.008)	(0.007)	(0.018	(0.003)	(0.002)		
paym	4.225	4.961	5.100	8.254	7.754	8.038		
	(0.082)	(0.029)	(0.026)	(0.004	(0.006)	(0.005)		
diff_ind	3.620	4.070	4.033	6.061	4.854	4.912		
	(0.212)	(0.126)	(0.128)	(0.053	(0.104)	(0.098)		
roa	0.031	0.018	0.013	0.013	0.009	0.000		
	(0.839)	(0.898)	(0.925)	(0.939	(0.958)	(1.000)		
logasset	-1.043			-4.970)			
	(0.488)			(0.006	5)			
salary		-0.279			-0.509			
		(0.064)			(0.007)			
slogasset			-1.527			-2.813		
			(0.061)			(0.006)		
ownership	0.908	21.389	46.074	-113.23	31 -30.920	18.368		
	(0.995)	(0.885)	(0.757)	(0.517	(0.859)	(0.916)		
N	29	29	29	29	29	29		
R^2	0.402	0.479	0.481	0.573	0.566	0.574		
Adjusted R ²	0.239	0.336	0.339	0.461	0.453	0.462		

Panel B NON-SOE

Variable		CAR(-1,0))			CAR(-1,1)	
	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	-	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3
_cons	4.341	6.935	7.032		9.956	8.954	9.004
	(0.257)	0.000	0.000		(0.023)	0.000	0.000
leverage	-0.224	-0.147	-0.154		-0.361	-0.362	-0.377
	(0.387)	(0.548)	(0.529)		(0.220)	(0.195)	(0.176)
paym	-5.722	-5.524	-5.522		-7.241	-7.105	-7.135
	0.000						
diff_ind	-1.661	-1.541	-1.544		-2.010	-1.931	-1.957
	(0.154)	(0.186)	(0.185)		(0.129)	(0.144)	(0.139)
roa	0.096	0.123	0.123		0.125	0.136	0.132
	(0.183)	(0.080)	(0.079)		(0.128)	(0.089)	(0.097)
logasset	0.762				-0.455		
	(0.509)				(0.727)		
salary		-0.175				-0.292	
		(0.471)				(0.288)	
slogasset			-0.760				-1.024
			(0.441)				(0.361)
ownership	-0.040	-0.049	-0.047		-0.054	-0.053	-0.050
	(0.348)	(0.239)	(0.254)		(0.267)	(0.263)	(0.289)
N	181	181	181		181	181	181
R^2	0.119	0.119	0.120		0.155	0.159	0.158
Adjusted R ²	0.088	0.089	0.089		0.126	0.131	0.129

Figure 1 cumulative average abnormal returns (CAARs)

This graph shows the CAARs of acquiring firms over a period from 42 days prior to and 126 days after M&A announcements. We estimate the abnormal returns of acquiring firms based on the market model with a 253 trading day estimation period from day -380 to day -127 prior to M&A announcements.

